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CSC Computer Sciences Limited
Strategic report

The directors present their Strategic report on the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 202.1. In preparing the Strategic
teport, the directors have complied with section 414c of the Companies Act 2006.

CSC Computer Sciences Limited (“‘the Company”) is a private company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies
Act 2006, limited by shares and registered in England and Wales. The Company’s registered and principal address is Royal Pavilion,
Wellesley Road, Aldcrshot; Hampshire, GU11 1PZ; United Kingdom.

The Company is an indircct subsidiary of DXC Technology Company (DXC) (“the Ultimate parent company™), a public listed
Company incorporated in the United States of America and listed on the New York Stock Exchange. The entities controlled dircctly
or indirectly by the Ultimate parent company are referred as the Group companics (“Group”).

The financial statements for the year 1 April. 2020 to 31 March 2021 are set out on pages 19 to 60.

Review of business

The Company is a next-generation global provider of information technology (IT) services and solutions. We help lead clients
through their digital transformations to-meet new business demands and customer expectations in a market of escalating complexity,
interconnectivity, mobility and opportunity. ' '

Many of our clients are responsible for the country’s infrastructure, defence and security while others are global leaders in banking,
communications, manufacturing, retail, energy and utilities. These clients trust DXC’s technology-based solutions and services to
-run-and transform their businesses. - L N - - - —— - - -

The Company’s mission is to enable superior returns on our client’s technology investments. through best-in-class vertical industry
solutions; domain expertise; strategic partnerships with key technology leaders and global scale. We generally do not. operate
through exclusive agreements with hardware or software providers and believe this independence enables us to better identify and
manage solutions specifically tailored to each client’s needs.

On March 31, 2021, the Company transferred its healthcare assets to DXC Luxembourg Holding S.a.rj

On April 01,2021, DXC completed the sale of its heaithcare business to Dedatus Holding S.p.A. The sale of the healthcare business
to Dedalus is consistent with DXC’s stratcgy and focus on the Enterprise Technology Stack.

Results and key performance indicators »
A loss for the financial year of £60,566,000 (2020: profit of £18,405,000) has been transferred from reserves.

Details of the financial business rosults for the period are:

1 April 2020 to 1 April 2019 0 Change

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£'m £'m %
Revenue 552.3 635.4 (13)
Gross profit 63.9 84.8 (25)
Gross profit margin 11.6% 13.3% (1.8 ppts)
(Loss) before tax from continuing operations (208.8) (19.0) 998
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 148.3 374 296

Revenue from continuing operations declined by 13% from £635.4 million in the previous year to £552.3 million in the current year
due to reduction in customer contracts. Despite a challenging economic environment and trading activity, the results for the year
werc broadly in line with management’s expectations with known contract expirations taken into consideration.

Gross profit margin for the year has decreased in comparison to prior year and is reported at 11.6% (2020: 13.3%).



‘CSC Computer Scierices Liriited
Strategic report: '(’continu'ed)

‘Results and:key. performance indicators (contmued)
Aﬁer overhead icosts: the operattons results owed adécrease in profi tabtltty of the Compan before Aexceptl nal nems Durmg the

. i ):
‘tillion (2020 ‘write back: of 1mpa|rment loss:of £6. 9 mlllton) The Company reports an operatmg loss of £5| 0 mtlhon (2020 loss
-£31.7million)..

COStS

“The L fore tax: from operations:for the year is £52.2 million. (2020: loss:£38. I 'million).
Risk management, objectives:and policies
Performance’and financial risk managemeiit is afi ifitegral pact of the: Company’s tanagement processes, Policies designed ‘to
- identifyi; manage and limit both €xisting and, possible tisks ‘are: applied at: various management levels. The:principal and financial
risks and uiicertainties ofithe Comnany are:

o 'Foreign"cur"rency risk

As a global busmess the Company faces EXposure. to adverse:movements. ifi-foréign 'currency;exchange rates ln the normal course

ures o these Acontracts are. analysed ‘during the bidding: process 'f’he Company generally manages ‘these
contracts by mcumng costs in. the same currency in which the revenue lS recetved and any- related short term contract -ﬁnancmg

monitors the:rolling forecasts of the
aining sufficient;headroom:on its. cash.

pool ‘facilities at all times so that the Company:does not breach. the borrowing lmuts

. Markel rlSL

th , CIpllnal'y eam across nine workstreams worked fo-ensure over: 200 acttons were managed effecnvely and an
escalanon process was created:to-ensure the resources and:focus-required to:deal with any unanticipated eventuality were available.
These detatled preparatlons ‘were- mdependently assessed by global law i irm, Eversheds Sutherland who prov1ded fecdback to

P : c
apphcatlon ifi: other reas ,,f .the busmess pamcularly as. regards global: trade pollcy _to'such.an: extent that costs are now lower'
than they-were.priorito | January-2021.



CSC Computer Sciences Limited
Strategic report (continued)
Risk management, objectives and policies (continued)

Brexit (continued)

Lessons lcarned, -including newly improved processes such as engaging subject matter expertisc, information sharing hetween
rcgion, clearly communicated expectations, prioritizing work, collaboration are now being shared outside of the UKIIMEA (UK,
Ircland, Israel, Middle East and Africa) and NCE regions so that these benefits can be realised globally.

COVID-19

In relation. to COVID-19, management constantly ‘monitors the effects of the ouitbreak globally and the potential impact on the
busincss. The outbreak increcases. uncertainty about the future prospects of the company with key risk areas identified as liquidity,
customer’s ability to pay and possible operational disruption. As the company is part of the DXC group this has to be considered as
a group level.

The DXC Group has a strong liquidity position that means it will be able to sustain the business throughout this crisis and works to
meet all expected and any unexpected cash requirements by taking steps to minimise short term debt and maximise cash.

Customer ability to-pay has not had a material impact up to date of signing the financial statements and is constantly monitored in
case action is required.

Senior leadership in DXC is actively mandgmg response lhrough a COVID-19 Responqe Team that meets on a regular basis to deal
with all opcrational issues-as and when they arise. -~ = - - - Co e e e T S

There has been minimal operational disruption as IT infrastructure already in place has enabled ncarly all office staff.to quickly
switch to a “working from home™ model. Where this has not been-possible to meet our customer’s requirements stcps have been
implemented to provide COVID-19 safe workplaces meaning business continues.

Management is actively taking steps to ensure the protection and retention of staff and thc associatcd corporatc memory that are
crucial to the company’s ability to- weather this crisis and to rebuild when the:opportunity arises.

¢  Other risk
Impairment.and valuation. risk of investments .is dependent on the performance of the underlying group. The directors therefore
perform annual impairment assessments on-investment balances.

Further details on other busincss risks and uncertainties can be found in Section 1A of the DXC’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021, which are available to the public and may be obtained from www.dxc.technology

Future developments

The Company will continue to provide computer consultancy, systems integration and computer outsourcing services. The business
has been able to diagnose those areas in which efficiencies and improvements can be made and implement plans to reduce costs.
The Company aims to furthcr cxccute cost reduction strategies within the organisation to continue.to stabilise, if not improve,
profitability for the next financial year. It also focuses on reskilling employees with advanced digital capabilities, expanding the
DXC:Partner Network to support clients in their digital transformations.



‘CSC Computer Sciences Limited
‘Strategic.réport (continued)

Section 172(1) statémeit:

The suceess:6f the-Conipany’5 busitiess is: dependent on thic:support:ofiall. ofits stakelivlders. Building: positive 1elat’ionsh‘ip's -with.

stakeholders. that share our valucs-is important to the.dircctors, and: working together towards shared:goals assisls; us.in delivering,

long term sustamable success This; cultures,ls remforced byfthe dlrectors attentlon to ‘their obhgatlons under's172 of the: Companies.
esithat"a director-of d-¢oi g e-considers; :in:good faith; would.bé.riost-likely

10 pramote the siicceéss of the company for the. bcncf t of iis meibers .as a whoIe dnd i domg §0 have regard: (ainongst .othés -

‘matlers) ta:

o o o

fith sippliefs; Gustomers and:others;
,the;lmpact of the company 's: operatlons on’ the commumty_and the:environment;

‘the:desirability. of the company maintaining:a reputation: for. high standards. of: business: conducf; and:
-« ‘theineed fo act fairly as between:members of the company.

Féedback: from stakeholder: consistently ¢oiisidered: by the directors When i f
provided by:way.of reporting and meetmgs which focus on the business: :strategy, performance aid the:impact of key: decisiors on
stakeholder-interests:in: the short andi long term. ‘Where possible; decisions that affcct certain stakelivlders are: carefully, discussed.
with:the affected groups beforchand and are:therefore: full understood and supported. when taken. All decisions-are made with the,
Highest standards of conduct:in;mind, and: i. lific With-Grotip-policies.

Details:of the key-stakeholders and’how thc: Company.cngages:with: them are set out betow.

Business Vilues:
°© Asbartof DXC'$.fecgiit Strategic ; tie Conipany b
cm'ployees and customers. ‘Such an approach:is uriprecedented in the:technology:sector, :and:the Companyis proud to lead:
the:wayiin‘inspiring; engaging, and takingcare.of its.employees; so that they caniniturm:continue to focus on the ‘Company’s:
customers;and helping;the wider DXC group to seize the:market;
i nkmg to this ° people f' rst! strategy he ( mpany: also recently mtroduced ‘a new: set of values whlch fost

pted:a ‘peoplefirst’ strategy-in relation to both it's:

; -culture of

; , , i s the receipt -of lodns or .the'

‘lvement in other mter-company trarisal ¢ ven ithe appropnatc time to be considered,
andia conclus;on reached as:fo:whether such ‘action is'in the: best interests of the:Company, aswell as for its:shareholders
and:other stakeholders;:and

o Any.infer-company fransactions; or those:with mter—company impact,:must first be reviewed and approved by the.Corporate.
‘Finance Executive Committee.fo;ensure the Company’s; compllance with the DXC.group:policies.and procedures:on such,,

o.  The Company does:not follow.a specific-policy'ondividends which are.instead declared.and paid:on‘an:adihoc basis subject
fo the financial position; of the: Company and future forecasting:

Emgloyees
o Overithe fiangial year in question, the Company fepieated:iits -all employee figagemeit siitvey comprising; the. original;

twenty-two questlons issued inFY20,:as well'as-an-addi ionalisix questlons on cov:d response and mclusron and belongmg,;
& Particips : 'as’?up from 59% in FY: "OLto 71% ' ; ’

unprecedented COVID 19. Pandemig:. Si ;;' m mclude conductmg regular commun_ atlons to ] )
informed-of the health -and safety measures in; place at‘company facilities, ‘creating a dedicated COVID-19. and Health &‘
Safety:site'to’keep employees informed.of relevant.updatesin:realztime, and establishing a Mental Health:Matters program,_
with ‘thé aim of i lncreasmg dwdreness around the impagt: of COVID=19 on mieiital health; and ‘providing. practical. and
educational adviceto:s vith:these challenges:

Ciistomers &:Business::

o To:ensure thaf the Company’s:business:is conducted in a:
conduct i§ reviewed on, an .anfial basis to-fefrésh- and reinforée the importance of comphance \
applicable laws;,

& The Commpay has account and dehvery teams for its Jlargest cuStomers. to enstre that it ¢ain- continudusly engage with
customers:arid drive:the: Company’s services andithe customer’s business. forward;

rally:appropriate and ethical:manner, the, Company*

th DXC pohcy and,

W



CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Strategic report (continued)

Section 172(1) statement (continued)

Customers & Business: (continued)

The Company develops and maintains a comprehensive governance regime which includes structured open contact at
multiple levels including operational, commercial, and financc forums, and also executive level interaction up to and
including the Customer and DXC CEOs. As a result of this structure, any issues that do arise can be dealt with at the
appropriate level and with subject matter experts; and

In addition, the Company has established a “Voice of the Customer” programme, the purpose of which is to interview and
survey the Company’s key customers in order to capture their views on what the Company could do better. By collecting
fcedback throughout the customer journey, the Company can deliver superior business impact, promoting customer
satisfaction and building long-standing partnerships. This fiscal year, the Company focused on improvements in
programme management (i.e. training, process documentation, target feedback and pilots), innovation and proactiveness,
and resource management - as directed by .its customers.

. Suppliers:

The Company actively manages it suppliers through its Supplier Relationship Management Programme which gives
suppliers contact and feedback at all layers of the business in an effort to maintain a reputation for efficient communication
and transfer of information;

The Company holds regular reviews with its supplier’s account or operational, finance and sales teams, with overall

" governance from the Company s Supply Chain organisation and in compliance with DXC policies.

This process allows both the supplier and the Company to feedback on performance and further commercial opportunities,
and also address any issues; and

During FY21, thc Company submittcd a Responsible Supply Chain survey to some of its supplicrs, in ordcr to cnsurc that
they are meeting, and better exceeding, environmental standards. Those identified as high-risk were passed on to DXC's
supply chain management to undertake a more in-depth review with the supplier and to work to resolve the issues identified
within three months.

Communities and Environment:

At a Corporate level, DXC has set a number of environmental targets to reduce the carbon, waste and water impacts the
organisation has. These goals are embedded into thc company stratcgy and the approaches being taken;

_ The Company has implemented a Virtual First programme, which allows employees to embrace a more flexible and agile

work experience and move to a largely virtual-first workforce. These programmes will reduce DXC’s GHG emissions,
overall energy consumption, and the dependence on cmployec daily work commutes and business travel;

Electricity purchased by the Company, where in direct control, is 100% from verified renewable electricity sources,
including across all data centre operations; and

IT asset disposal, including servers, computers, laptops and screens from Company and customer operations arc rcuscd
where possible for a second life. Some of these items are distributed to schools and charities.

The Company is proud to support the DXC Dandelion programme which was introduced in February 2021 within the UK
to support and celebrate the talents and skills of individuals on the autistic spectrum. The programme aims to help such
individuals build valuable skills to pursue a career in information technology.

Approved by the board and signed on its behalf by:

[ M Eales

Director
29 April

2022

Registered Office:
Royal Pavilion
Wellesley Road
Aldershot
Hampshire

GU11 1PZ



CSC Computer Sciences Limited,
Directors" report.

ent the .Annual report:on the:affairs:of the Company, together with the.audited financial statements for the year: I
March 2021,

’Fhezdirec_tors‘f
April 2020 to:

. Principal activity :
The' Company continues.to provide:computer: consultzmcy, systems intcgration and:computer. outsourcmg services:

Futire developments , - o ,
Future.developments have.been detailed.in the Strategic teport'otiipage:4 and forni part:of thi

Eport by crossirefererice.
* Evéentssince the reporting date _

Details of the significant events after the reportinig:datc arc:contained-ininote 28 t6:the financial stateéments.

Research diid development |

The:Company. Continiies to. invest in.reseaich. dnd deyelopraent to-extend its .product offerings and. improve the efficiency of its
existing products. During:the firiancial year, the:Company iricuried costs totallitig 97,000.(2020:.£5,082,000)

Branches oiitside the UK
The.Company:has no branches outstdc the: UK 5. defined i section 1046-(3) ofithie Conpanies Act’ 2006

Fm nclal nskgmanagement objectives: and pohcles )

Dividends-
No leldend was declared or pald dunng the fmanc:al :year A dividend of £169 750,000 was: paid-after the year ended 31 March

Directors

The followirig were directors:of thie:Company duting: the financidl year and:up, to the-date of this report; except:as hiotéd:
C N Halbard Appointed on 7 Aptil 2020

H M:Eales .Appointed on;21 Janvary 2022

S J'Turpie:

M C'Woodfiiie

T"A Gotugh' Resigned.on 7 Apiil 2020

* No.qualifying;third-party: indeiiinity provisions were:made by-the Comipany-during the financiak year for the benefit 6fits directors.
Political:contributions -
N6 polmca.-‘donahons were made. durmg the:financial ycar: (2020 £ml)

Going concern :

The Eompany is; loss: making however.reportsinet assets, has positive:-working;capital.. The direciois have a redsonable expectation
that the:Company ‘has adequate resourccs: to ‘continug in opcratlonal exnstence for the foreseeable future. for -4 .period -of at. least
twelve-moriths froin when the financial statémerits arc authorisce ;. Confirmation: and letter of: support. ‘has been: provided
by: the parerit:compary that'it will continu support the:operations going forward Accordingly, the difectors continué
going ‘concerm basis in preparing:the financial;statements. '

‘In_relation. to: COVID- 19 Management-is continuously ‘monitoring. the position arid: faking ll :necessary steps::to: protect its
: 'loyees scustomers:and stakeholders. A, goi g'concern: impact:assessment has been completed: that-analysed' DXC's current:and
cash resoiiré 5, J6Cess, (o €xisting and neW financing: fagilities, mcludmg revolvmg facilities :and the .customer base-of the

dro.ua
A's:a result, Management have:a reasonable expectation; of the:Company’s and: DXCs: viability over the period.of :asséssment and
obtained letter ofisupport:from: the ultimatc: parcnt company, thus concluded that there are:currently-no.impediments ofiidentifying
the Company:other than as.a 'goin'g concem.

notaffect:amouiits recognised
beyond since the Coinipany

1. e‘dnrector° conmder that-vthe war will not havc any matérlal '1mpact ii 2022
,does not have any customers/suppllers in Ukraine or‘Russia.

Further details:regarding: the adoption:of the:going concern basis'can:be:found:in:the statemenit of:accounting policies in note 2.



‘[mplementmg ro

csc :Comput'er Scierices Limited

iEmployees
Details of‘the:number-of’ cmployccs and rclated:costs.cantbe: found:in:note:8 to:the:fi nancral statcments:

‘ensurcs thc reeognmon and-'contnbutmn all’ employees'regardlcss of gendcr race and ethmc1ty, mental or physrcal abrlmes or'
rehgrous :and, LGBTQ+ cultures This is: supported by an Equal Opportunmes Pohcy and;the UKI Dlversny Steermg Group

enables the Company to properly inform and involve employees in:decision. makmg and problem solvmg, increasing collaboratlon
“creativity and innovation through: dialogue-and éxcharige of-views:.

The Company recogmses the rmportance of provrdmg a safe workmg envrronment for all employees and others who may: be affected

3 "nagement processe ) r-y; :
‘risks. and: promoting :cmploycc: hicalth. and wcllabcmg,,dcvclopmg appropnatc cmcrgcncy prcparcdncss and; rcsponsc plans, and
provrdmg appropriate health and safety training, information and supervision.. This.is:supported by, the DXC Environment, Health-
& Safeéty Policy.

Disabléd:employees

Apphcanons -for-employment-by-disabled-persons.are-always-fiilly~considered;- bearmg in-mind-the-abilities-of-the-applicant= .. ...z
—concemned:-In-the:event-of members:ofistaff-becoming-disabled-every-effort-issmade-to-ensure-that:their-employment:with:the:group—

€ontiniiés and -that' dppropriate training: i§ arranged, It is thé: policy of the group: and. the Compdny: that: the training. career

development and. promotlon of disabled persons:should,as far.as possible, beidentical to that'of other employees.

affectmg tbem as employees and.on the various factors afl'ectmg the: performdnce of the: group :and lhe‘Company Thrs is achieved:
through formal and :informai meetmgs ‘the Company magazine and a specral edition for :employees of :the annual findnéial
statements -Employee representatlves are 'consulted regularly ond wxde range of matters aﬂ‘ectmg thclr currcnt and futurc mtcrcsts

plan ‘which pnmanly include time-based" restncted share ‘uriits. (RSUs) and performance-based restrlcted share umts (PSUs) In.
addition, eligible employees:participate:in-an:annual cash bonus plan; with pay-outbased on achievementiof financial:and customer:
satisfaction metrics.

Engagement wrth supplrers, customers and others

pages: 4: to,6-and forms'part of thrs report by cross reference

Energy and Carbon Report:
As -per The :Comp: ,,s ‘(Drrectors Report) and lerted Llablllty Partnershlps (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulatrons 2018

The. report:i
Thi
and so:a combined report is: presented.

Corporate governance:
As a'sibsidiary-company of thie DXC Technology company’ group: -which 5 listed on the NewYork Stack: Exchange, the: Company
has developmiént governance practices and processes that aré fit for puipose.

The:directors have.applied an.undocumented:system of:governance by:

a). Promoting the purpose ofthe Company. t6 déliverinformation technology services and solutions;

b) Regularly reviewing:board composition to.ensure that:ithas:an. appropnately diverse balance of skills, background, experience-
.and knowledge and:thatiindividual directors have. sufficient capacity:to make a valuable contribution;

¢). To support eﬁ'ectlve deol.,ron makmg drrcctors consider the System of Internal.Conitrol ard the- Code;of Conduct when: actmg

"t ldentrfy opportunmes ‘to-create:and preserve ‘valueand
€) Havingregard:fo:and fostering:good:stakeholder relationships.



CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Directors' report (continued)

Stakeholder Engagement .

The Company aims to build enduring relationships with. govornments; regulators, customers, partners, supplicrs and communities
in the United Kingdom. The Company works with its business partncrs in an honcst respectful and responsible way: and sccks to
work with others who share the Company’s commitments to safety, ethics and compliance.

The Company’s activity effect a wide variety of individuals and organisations. The company engages with these stakeholders and
listens to their differing needs and priorities as-an everyday part of its business and used the input and fecdback to inform its decision
making.

On behalf of thc Company, the DXC group participates in industry associations that offer opportunitics to sharc good practiscand
collaborate on issucs of importance. Additionally, it works with governments on a range ‘of issucs that are relevant to its business;
from regulatory compliance, to collaborating on community initiatives.

The group sccks to engage with customers through social media, focus groups and in-depth intervicws with customers to better
understand customer’s needs and seek their feedback.

Employee Engagement

Employoes of the Company arc informed of information on matter of concern to them as employees through the employee intranet
and local sites, e-mails, social media channcls, town halls, site visits and wcbinars including topics such as quartcrly rcsults, stratcgy,
business updates and diversity.

There-are a number.of employee sharc plans in place at group level. The group operates sharc save and sharc reward plans. The
group also operates group-wide discretionary share plans, which allow cmployee ‘participation at différent levels globally and is
linked to the group’s performance.

Auditor

Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for another term. The Company has clected to dispense with the
obligation to appoint an auditor annually under the provisions of sections 485 to 488 of the Companies Act 2006 and appropriate
arrangements haveé been put.in.place for them to be deemed reappointcd in the absence of an Annual General Mccting:.

Disclosure of information te auditor

Each director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

o so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and

e he/she has taken all steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418(2) of the Companics Act
2006.

Approved by the board and signed on its behalf by:

il

M Eales
Director
29 April 2022

Registered Office:
Royal Pavilion
Wellesley Road
Aldershot
Hampshire

GUI1 IPZ



CSC Computer Sciences Limited
Diréctors> responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible:for preparing:the Annual Report and the: financial statcments in-accordancc: with applicable law:and.
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to-prepare financial'statements for each financial yéar, Undet that law'thé:directors have €lected
10 arc the-financial statements:in:accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted-Accounting Practicei(United Kingdom
ting Standards and applicable: law), including FRS 101-“Reduced Disclosure Framework”.

Under company:law. the directors:must not:approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give:a trie.and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company-and of the profit or loss of the. Company for that :period. In: preparing;these financial
statemients, the directors are required to:

;select suitable aceounting’ pohcnes and thed; :apply thénd consisténtly;
iake judgements and.accounting estimates-that:are reasonable and prudent;
® ;stage w blé UK Accoiinting: Standards' have ‘been. followed, subject to any.:material departures dlsclosed and
1 ;the ﬁmmcxal statements;:and
o zprcparc the finanicial statémeits on the going concem. basis unlessiitiis:inappropriate. to:presume: that the Company will-continuc
in business.

“The. diréctors are responsxb)e for keepmg adequate: accountmg records: that are sufficient to.show:and explain’ the Company's
transactions and disclosc with réasonable accuracy at any time:the ﬁnanclal posmon of the Company and:to enable them to ensure

that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 20067 They are also: responsxble for. safeguardmg ng the asscts of thc

'ICompany and hence for. taking Teasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud-and other.irregularities.

10



CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Energy and Carbon report .
Forthe financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

This Energy and Carbon report produced by CSC Computer Sciences Limited (CSC) provides an overview of the energy and
carbon emissions under CSC’s operational control of and the mechanisms being put in place to manage these impacts.

The UK Government’s 2018 Regulations launched the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Report (SECR) which required all large
UK companies to report their carbon emissions and energy usage on an annual.basis. The regulations take effect from 1 April
2019 and cover financial reporting years starting after this date. CSC falls within scope of the SECR reporting obligations as.a
‘large’ organisation (more than 250 people) and is required to report the following:

e UK energy use (to include as a minimum purchased electricity, gas and transport)

o . Associated greenhouse gas emissions

e At least one intensity ratio

e Previous year’s figures for energy use and GHG emissions

"o Information about energy efficiency action taken in the organisation’s financial year

s Methodologies used in calculation of disclosures.
-CSC has voluntarily recported the comparative data in this report.
Reporting boundaries
Operational control
CSC s a legal entity under the US based parent company DXC Technology. DXC’s UK property portfolio comprises a wide variety
of both owncd and leased sites, including Data Centers, Offices, and other uses. DXC report environmental impacts at a global level
and CSC reflect the same approach in company reporting for the UK. An operational control appreach is used to define the scope
according to the GHG Protocol.
Reporting Units
The following sites are in scope for CSC:

Table 1: CSC sites in scope FY21

Site Name . o Location

Maidstone Data Center : Pegasus place, Maidstone

Aylesford Data Center Bellingham Way, Aylesford

Sevenoaks Data Center North Downs Business Park, Sevenoaks
Tunbridge Wells Data Center Spectrum House and Millennium House, Tunbridge Wells
Chesterfield Manor Offices 0ld Road, Chesterfield

Aldershot Royal Pavilion ‘ ‘Wellesley Road, Aldershot

Maidstone Bircholt Road, Maidstone

Chorley Euxton Lane, Chorley

London Pancras Square Pancras Square, London

Grace Street West Gate, Leeds

Crossgate House Cross Street, Sale

Endeavour Drive Endeavour Drive, Basildon

Gosport Grange Road, Gosport

Liantarnam Park The Pavilions, Cwmbran

Walter Burke Way Walter Burke Way, Chatham

Fulwood Park Caxton Road, Preston

Enfield Street Roundhay Road, Leeds

Tewkesbury Alexandra Way, Tewkesbury

CSC operate-a fleet of leased road vehicles which make up the Scope 1 transport energy and emissions included in this report. In
addition this year, business travel conducted in personal vehicles (where the mileage is expenged to CSC) is included as Scope >
transport.
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CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Energy and Carbon report (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Baseline and reporting periods

The Company’s financial year runs from April to March. The current reporting period for SECR is April 2020 to March 2021,
hereafter referred to as FY21. The previous year reported is April 2019 — March 2020 (FY20).

UK Energy use

Table 2: Energy use
Encrgy, kWh FY20 FY21 % change
Natural gas 4,340,645 2,356,758 -46%
Diesel 1,322,251 1,278,447 -3%
Electricity 80,397,514 67,325,251 -16%
Transport (company vehicles) 154,440 5,983 -96%
Transport (personal vehicles) 518,835 24,079 -95%
Total energy use 86,733,685 70,990,518 -18%

Flectricity

Figure 1: Breakdown of CSC energy use (kWh) in FY21

95%

Diesel
2%

“~ Transport

95% of CSC’s encrgy use is clectricity and this is the primary focus of energy saving initiatives. Principal uses of electricity include
IT load and cooling in data centres as well as lighting and power across all sites. Natural gas is used for heating in offices. Diesel
generators act as the emergency power supply for data centers, and the primary use of diesel is for regular maintenance checks of

these systems.

Mileage data is collected for CSC’s fleet of leased vehicles and for business mileage taken in personal vehicles. Both of these
elements have reduced significantly duc to very limited travel during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Associated greenhouse gas emissions

Table 3: Location based GHG emissions

GHG emissions, tCO:(e) FY20 FY21 % change

Scope 1 — Gas 798 433 -46%
Scope 1 — Diesel 334 328 -2%
Scope 1 — Transport 37 1 -96%
Total Scope 1 1,169 763 -35%
Total Scope 2 Electricity 20,550 15,696 -24%
Total Scope 3  Personal vehicles 125 6 -95%
Total location-based emissions 21,844 16,465 -25%

Table 4: Market based GHG emissions

GHG emissions, tCO2(e) FY20 FY21 % change

Scope | 1,169 763 -35%
Scope 2 2,048 1,380 -33%
Scope 3 125 6 -95%
Total market-based emissions 3,343 2,149 -36%
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CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Energy and Carbon report (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Associated greenhouse gas emissions (continued)
CSC procures renewable electricity backed by Guarantees of Origin. This reduces the total location based emissions by 87% to a

small market based emissions footprint.

Figure 2: Comparison of location based and market based emissions FY21
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Table 5: Location based GHG emissions per unit floor area

{ GHG emissions, FY20 FY21 % change
kgCO:(e) per m2 floor area
Scope | 15 11 -26%
Scope 2 257 221 -14%
Scope 3 , 2 0 -95%
Total scopes 1 & 2 273 232 -15%

CSC’s energy use is predominantly in buildings and the site portfolio is variable year on year. Floor area is therefore used as the
intensity metric to evaluate efficiency of CSC’s space. From FY20 to FY1, floor area reduced by 11.2% reflecting the company’s
move to a “Virtual First” approach.

Energy efficiency action )

The CSC portfolio includes four Strategic Data Centres which make up 66% of CSC’s electricity use. These sites are certified to
ISO 50001 and have an active Energy Management System (EnMS) fully embedded within site operations. Energy efficiency
activities take place as part of “business as usual” operation, with a focus on reducing energy used for cooling (one of the significant
energy uses on site). Airflow management has been a focus area in FY21, include correct positioning and management of grilles
and vents distributing cold air, and management of setpoint temperatures and volumes. In addition, a major chiller replacement
programme has taken place at Maidstone DC, with installation of new, highly efficient equipment. )

There has been a significant reduction in transport use between FY20 and FY21 , as shown in figure 3. This is due to both a reduction
in fleet vehicles across the operation, and reduced transport across the board due to COVID-19.



CSC Computer Science§ Limited

Energy and Carbon report (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Energy efficiency action (continued)

Figure 3: Transport in fleet and personal vehicles.
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Methodologies used
Information in this report has been compiled in accordance with the GHG Pretocol Corporate Standard.

DXC Technology implements a Global GHG Reporting Procedure which has been applied to UK locations in the development of
this report.

An operational control approach is taken such that owned and Icased assets are considered in scope where operated by DXC. All
CSC UK sites recorded in DXC’s Property Management Database are included in scope unless specifically excluded under criteria
in accordance with the GHG Protocol. Reporting years align with the company’s financial year:

Reporting years align with the Company’s financial year:

Table 6: Base and.reporting years
Target base year FY20 1% April 2019 to 31% March 2020

Reporting year FY21 1% April 2020 to 31% March 2021

Actual data is obtained as far as possible, with priority given to sites with the greatest impact on GHG emissions. This limits the
need for estimation to smaller, lower impact sites. For CSC in FY21, 89% of the energy use reported in Table 2 is based on actual
data, and 11% is estimated. Where actual data is not available for a site, consumption is estimated based on best available
information.

Data collection

Energy data is collected at monthly resolution from thc following sources:

Table 7: Data sources

Energy broker Invoice data from energy suppliers

Renewable energy certificates
DXC Fleet Operations team Mileage for leased vehicles '

Vehicle information including fuel type, size, registration.
DXC Corporate Operations team Expensed mileage for personal vehicles

Fuel type
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CSC Coinputer:Scieiices Liniited

Energy and:Carbon report (continued)
_For'the financial year 1 A'-prﬂt 2020 to 31.March 2021

‘Data collection (continued)

‘_Data prov1ded undergoc., :a number of” C!’lflCﬂthD ch cks; inéludi g rcconcxhatnon bctween different soiirces reporlmg 1he: sdme

t ed.é'rrﬁssnon., -factors used are'the UK:Government:conversion factors:for company reporting. A siiigle:set.ol facions
‘are applled to.the reporting; year, i.c. thc:2020:conversion factors arc-applied;to the full EY21 reporting year.

Market'based fagtors:take into account the fuelimik used. For many. locatiois, clectricity: purcliased by CSC is: fivin 100%
renewableienergy’ ‘Wherethis ismnof: possible, €.g: alensed site where clectricity is procured thiough:the landlord, UK residual

emissions:factors are-used:.

.‘External verification

GHG: inventory.: and is therefore covered by this venﬁéation



Independent auditor’s report to the members of CSC Computer Sciences Limited
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of CSC Computer Scicnees Limited (the ‘compuny’):

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as.at 31 March 2021 and of its loss for the year then ended;

o have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including
Financia! Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Woc have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the statement of profit and loss;

the statement of comprehensive income;
the balance sheet;

the statement of changes in equity; and
the related notes 1 to 28.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
. Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards arc further described in the auditor's responsibilitics for-the audit of the financial statcments
section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the cthical requircments that arc relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
cthical responsibilities in uccordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of -accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identificd any matcerial uncertainties relating to cvents or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability. to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements-arc authorised for issuc.

QOur responsibilitics and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are deseribed in the relevant sections of
this report.

Other information

The other information compriscs the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statcments and our auditor’s
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 5o, consider whether the other information is matcrially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the coursc of the audit, or otherwise appcars to be matcrially misstated.
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we arc required to determine whether this gives rise
to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Indepcndent auditor’s rcport to the members of CSC Computer Sciences Limitcd (continued)
I'or-the financial year 1 April 2020:to 31 March 2021

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the directors determine is
nceessary to cnablc the-preparation of financial statements that are frec from matcrial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the dircctors are responsible for assessing the company?s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intcnd to liquidate the company or to-ccasc operations,-or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from. material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an auditor's report. that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is .a
high level of assurance, but is:not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will-always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregatc, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of uscrs taken on the basis. of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.ul/auditorsresponsibilitics. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularitics, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and rcgulations. We dcsign procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect'material misstatements in respect of irregularitics, including fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecting irregularitics, including fraud is detailed below.

e  We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company’s documentation
of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management
about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

o  We discussed among the audit engagement team including relevant internal specialists such as tax, pensions, IT specialists
regarding the .opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might
occur in the financial statements.

We obtaincd an understanding of thie legal and regulatory framework-that thc company opcratcs in, and identified the key laws
and regulations that:

e had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements: These included UK
Companies Act, pensions legislation, tax legislation; and

¢ donot have a direct cffcct on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamecntal to the company’s ability
to operate or to avoid a. material penalty. These included health and safety regulations, data protection act and anti-corruption
reguiations. '

We discussed among the audit engagement team including relevant internal specialists such as tax, pensions, IT specialists regarding
the opportunitics and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the
financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following arcas, and our specific procedures
performed to address it are described below:

s Material pass through revenue recognised on contracts involving significant principal versus agent revenue considerations. In

response to the risk we have identified controls to ensure accurate contract assessment and accounting treatment of pass through
revenue are accurately set up.
We have tested design, implementation and operating effectiveness of relevant controls that are in pace. Our substantive testing
procedures include identifying new and complex contracts and assessing whether management have applied their judgment
correctly on complex accounting considerations in relation to pass through revenue and concluding if it is in compliance with
IFRSIS. -



Independent auditor’s report to the members of CSC Computer Sciences Limited (continued)

For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud (continued)

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), wc arc also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk. of
management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of
journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgemcnts madc in making accounting estimates are indicative of a
potential bias; and evaluated the business rattonale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outsidc thc normal course of
business..

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

e reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a dircct effect on the financial statements;

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected rclationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud;

e cnquiring of management and in-house legal counsel conceming actual and potential litigation and claims, and instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

e reading minutes of mectings of thosc charged with governance.

Report on ather legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
" In our opinion; bascd on the work undertaken in the course of the audic™

e the information given in [the strategic report and] the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
o the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicablc lcgal requircments.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the-Companies Act 2006 we arc rcquired to report in respect of the-following matters if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns ddequate for our audnt have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or : .

e the [inancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e wc have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter.3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are reéquired to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Y S

Lee Welham, FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Cambridge, United Kingdom

3 MC\'j 2922
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€SC:Computer Sciences Limited

‘Statement of profit:and loss
For the financial year 1. April 2020 to 31 March 2021

‘Restated
Financial year Financial year:
1 April 2020 1 April 2019
‘to 31' March 2021 to 31:March 2020
Notes. £°000 £2000:
Revenue: 5 552,347 635,408.
Cost of sales. (488,441) (550,581)
Gross profit : 63,906, 84,827
Administrative expenses (120,085) (102,956)
Other operatingincoifie A 15,251 3,073
Exceptional items . 7&14 . (10,087) 16,667).
Operating loss 6 (51;015) (31,723)
| Analysed between:
Operating. loss béfore-ex¢eptionil item (40,928) (15,056)
Exceptional item ~ restructuring‘expenses 7 {9,448) (14,876)
Exceptional item — investment impairment 14 (16,986) 18,735)
Exceptional item:— reversal of impairment.of feceivables _ 16347 - 6,944
Income from subsidiary 166
Finance income : 9 52,632 52,922
Finance.expense 9 A54,021) (59,265)
Loss before-taxation from:continuing opérations (52,238) (38,066)
‘Tax (charge)/credit for the-year 10 (156,580) 19,041
Loss for thé financial. year from continiing opérations (208;818) (19,025)
Profit:for:the financial year. frofii discontiniied operations 27 148,252 37,430
(Loss) /'profit for the year (60,566) 18,405:

The notes on pages 24:to 60 form part of these financial statements.



CSC Compiiter Sciences Limited

‘Statement of comprehensive income
For the financial year 1 April 2020.to 31 March 2021

‘(Loss) / profit.for the financial year

Other compreherisive income/(expense); items that will not be reclassified
to statement of profit.and:loss;

‘Difference between actual.and expected retumn;on pension:scheme asselts,
Effects. of changes. in' assumplions underlying the: present value: of pension
.scheme liabilities

Gain relating to-retirement:benefits obligations
Charge-on deferred tax relating to pension asset
‘Unrealised loss on interest rate swap-hedging

et e, e AT e s

LT e T ——

___._Total comprehenswe(expense)/lncomc.for_thcﬁnancml yearattributable:to—_

e o, e

Notes

22
22

Financial.year

Fingnicial year

1April2020to  1.April 2019 to
31March 2021 31 March:2020
£'000. £'000

(60,566) 18,405
172,886 20,298
(162,828) 83,404
10,058, 103,702

(1,429) (19,892)

(229) (1,351)

(52,161)—

__100;864

the ownérs:6f the Company.

The notes on pages 24 to-60:form: part:of these financial:statements.




CSC:Computer Sciences. Limited

Balance sheet
As at 31 Marc¢h 2021

Assets
Non-current assets’
Iritangible assets.
‘Tangible assets

Right-of-use assets’
Investments )

Trade and othet réceivables
‘Deferréd:taxation:asset.
‘Pension assets

Total non:current assets
Current assets

Inventory

Trade.and other. receivables:
Cash at bank:and in hand

Assets held for sale:
Total current assets:
Total asséts

Liabilities
Cnrrent'lialgiliﬁes _
Trade and.other payables.
Lease liabilities:
Provisions

‘Total current liabilities'
Net:current assets
‘Non-current liabilitiés
Trade-and other payables:
‘Lease liabilities

Total non-currentliabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets-

‘Notes

11
12

13
14
17

10
22

15

16

27

18
23
20:

19

23

31" March 2021

£000:

3,053
11979

22,400
97,054
40,000

239,960

514,446

120,620
598,598
127,467
846,685

7,532

854,217

1,368,663

(319,476)
(15,751)
(2,387)

(337;614)

516,603

(473,410).

(68,751),
(542,161)

(879,775)

488,888

:31 Mareh 2020

£2000

55,889
124,587

27332
67,974
40,000
1:57,630
228,598
702,010
73,903
476,073
395,082

945,058

945,058

1,647,068

(574,838)
(14.396)
(10,132)

(599,366)
345,692

(464,608)
(76,761)

(541,369)

(1,140,735)

506,333
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CSC Comiputer Sciencés Limited

Balance:sheét
As at:31 March 2021

‘Notes
Equity

Share capital » 24

Share premium

Other reserves.

Share-based payment:reserve.
Profit and.loss account:

Taotal equity’

The notes on pages 24 t0°60-form. part of these ﬁnaﬁci_a];statjen‘lents;_

31 March2021 31 March 2020
£000 £7000

19,560. 19,560

243,366 243366 .

33,182 -

1,534

191,246 243,407

488,888

These ‘financial statemeiits of CSC Computer Sciences Lirited (registéred number 00963578) ‘were approved -and
authoriscd for-issuc’ by thc-board of dircctars an:29 April 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

T e g | Gt o o v e 13 e 0, T e N

o e o e 5 e, s g o e 1 s e e e o v e oot by 4 o i et

" Director
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CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Share Share Share Other Profit. Total
capital premium based reserves and loss.
account payments
reserve

Notes £000 £000 £000 £°000 £000- £°000

]

Balance as at 1 April 2019 ' 19,560 243,366 3,115 - 155399 421,440

Profit for the financial year - - - - 18,405 18,405
Other comprehensive income / (expense) ‘
for the financial year

Movements relating to retirement benefits 22 - - - - 103,702 103,702
obligations

Movement relating to unrealised gain on - - - - (1,351) (1,351)
interest rate swap hedging . .
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension [{] - - - - (19,892) (19,892)
asset

Total comprehensive income for the - - - - 100,864 100,864
financial year

Share-based payment capital contributions 21 - - (3,115) - (12,856) (15,971)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 19,560 243,366 - - 243,407 506,333
Loss for the financial year - - - - (60,566)  (60,566)

Other comprehensive income / (expense)

for the financial year .
10,058 10,058

Movements relating to retirement benefits 22 - - - -
obligations
Movement relating to unrealised gain on - - - - (224) (224)

interest rate swap hedging

Movement on deferred tax relating to pension 10 - - - (1,429) (1,429)

asset

Total comprehensive income for the - - - - 8,405 8,405
financial year

Share-based payment capital contributions 21 - - 1,534 - - 1,534
Notional equity on inter-company payable - - - 33,182 - 33,182
written off

Balance as at 31 March 2021 19,560 243,366 1,534 33,182 191,246 488,888

The notes on pages 24 to 60 form part of these financial statements.

e Share premium account represents the excess. of the issue price over the par value on shares issued less transaction costs
arising on issue.

¢  Share-based payment reserve represents the equity-settled share-based payments to employees granted by ultimate parent
company which is measured at the fair value of the equity instrument at the grant date.

s Profit and loss account reserve represents accumulated retained eamings net of dividends distributed to shareholders.
Other reserve relates to the write off of intercompany payable which was treated as notional equity.
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CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

1) Basis of accounting and general information

CSC Computer Sciences Limited (“the Company") provides computer consultancy, systems integration and computer outsourcing
activities. The Company provides its services mainly in the United Kingdom with a smaller proportion of its revenue generated by
other European markets, the United States of America and rest of the world.

The Company is a private company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006, limited by shares and
registered in England and Wales. The Company’s registercd and principal address is Royal Pavilion, Wellesley Road, Aldershot,
Hampshire, GU11 IPZ.

2) Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied o all the financial years presented, unless otherwisc stated.

Basis of preparation

The Company meets the-definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 ‘Application of Financial Reporting Requirements’ issued
by the FRC. The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework” (“FRS 101"). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
and in accordancc with the Companies Act 2006.

" The preparation of the financial stateménts in conformity with FRS 101 requires the use of cértain critical accounting estirates. Tt

also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where judgements and estimates are significant to the financial
statcments arc disclosed in note 3.

The following exemptions from the requirements of [FRS have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements, in
accordance with FRS 101. Where relevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the consolidated financial statements of the
ultimate parent company, DXC Technology Company (“DXC"), in relation 1a:

e the disclosure exemptions from [FRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures™;

e the disclosure exemptions from IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” to the extent that they apply to fidancial instruments;

o the disclosure exemptions from paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119(a) to (c), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

« the requirement in paragraph 38 of [AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ to present comparative information in respect
of:

(i) paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1;
(ii) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
(iii) paragraph 118(e) of LAS 38 Intangible Assets;
e the requirements of the following paragraphs of 1AS | Presentation of Financial Statements:
(i) 10(d) and 111 — a statement of cash flows for the period,

(ii) 10(f) — a Balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements;

(iii) 16 — a statement of compliance with IFRS, which is not applicable since we are adopting FRS101 rather than foliowing
IFRS in full;

(iv) 38A-D and 40A-D - a third Balance sheet, profit and loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and other additional comparative information;

(v) 134 to136 - disclosure of management of capital;
o the disclosure exemptions from paragraph 45(b) and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”;
¢ the disclosure exemptions of IFRS 3 “Business combinations™;
« the requirements of IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™;

e the disclosure exemptions from paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 *“Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors™; ’
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CSC Computér Sciences Limited.

Notes: to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021
2) Suimmaryof:significant:accounting policies. (continued)

Basis:of: preparation (continued)
o therequirements:of “paragraphs 17 and 18A.of IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”;,

o Lhe rcqulrements of IAS 24 “Related Party Dlsclosures" to dlsclose ;related paxty transactlons entered Anto’ between two; or:more

. 'the'-r.equ_lrcmentsp.f'IAS 3"6':“.Ir.npal_rmen.t~zof;AssetS”.

Going
The' Company s business activities, togetticr with the factorsilikely fo affect its future:development, prineipal risks:and uncertaintics,
performance;and position are:set out within the Directors’ report.

gihowever reports not.assets;has pogitive working cdpital, The difcctors Hive a e
‘that the: ‘Company has. adequate. resources-to; continuc: in-operational cxistence. for the foresceable future: for a. pcuod .of at: lenst_
fwelve months: from when the. financial statements are. authon.\cd for issuc. Confirmation; and lctter:of support. has been rovndcd
by the:pareiit company that it w1]l contiiiue to-support;th gly, the directors:continge:t

going concern basis:in preparing the fisancial statemeits.

In relation to; COVID—I9, Management xs contmuously momtormg the posmon and, takmg al] necessary steps“to protect xts

statemcnt8~

New.or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted, |

The: Company. has. adopted all the inew, revised or amending: Accounting Standards: and: Interpretations:issued by the; Financial
Reporting.Council ((FRC') that:are mandatory for:the current reporting ycar. ‘Fheir adoption:has:not had any:material impact on the:
disclosures oron the amounts;reported inithese financial statements.

TAS 1 3tid TAS8-~ Definition-of material:-.¢ffective for aniial yeais beginning on.or after 1 January 2020;

o Amendientsito
and.
s Conceptual Framework--Amendments to References to the;Conceptual Framework:in IFRS Standards- effective for annual,
years'beginning on or:after. 1 .January:2020..
There are no other amendments: to. accounting.standards, or [FRIC ‘intcrprctations that arc: cfféctive for the year endcd 3] March
2021 have had a material 1mpact onthe: Company.

Consolidation

T.he Company has taken advantage of’ thefexemptlon under sectlon 401 toithe Compames Act 2006:from the:requitemeiit to prodiice
idated £ { i sidid ology:Company,
company regl..tcrcd in thc ‘United <‘tutca of A ,‘hxch 1taelf preparcs consohduted Fmancml tateiments.. The financial
" statements therefore present information as an individual undcrtakmg and:nof as a group..Copies of the Group financial statements
of DXC Technology: Company arc availablc. from ithc registered ‘address: 20412 Bashan, Drive, Suite 250, -Ashburn; VA:20147;
.USA.

Forelgn currency

Foreign:currency transactions are'translated into the:functional currency of GBP using;the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the;transactions or valuation where. items. are re-measured. These financial. .,tatcmcnt., are prcscntcd in pounds stcrlmg'bccausc that*
is the currency: -of the primary ecofiomic:environment in which:the Company opérates. ] ¢ ¢ gains an ng
from the gottlémaent .of ich transactions: and: from the. translation . at year-end cxchnnge fates of. monetary Aassets: and liabilitics
denominated in foreign currencies are: recogm.,cd in the statement of profit'and loss. All other forcign cxchangc-gaings and. losses:
are:presented in.the. statement:of profit and loss-within “Other-operating incomc/cxpcnses’..
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CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued) _
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to.31 March 2021

2) Summary-of significant-accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue, including intercompany rcvenuc, is measured based on the consideration to which the'Company expects to be entitled in
a.contract with a customer and. excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The-Company recognises révenue when it
transfers control of a product or service:to a customer.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled in.exchange for
transferring’ goods: or sérvices to a customier. For .each contract with a customer, the Company: identifies the contract with-a
customer;, identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates
of the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-
alone selling price of-each distinct good or'service to be delivered; and récoghises revenue when or as each performance obligation
is satisfied in a manner:that depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services. promised.

Intercompany
Rcvenuc for work performed for fellow Group ¢ompanies, where services provided, arc rccogmscd at cost plus an arin’s length
mark-up.

S T T L —— S T T e r S

Serwces

The Company's primary services offerings include information technology (IT) data centre and business process transformation
outsourcing, application management services, technology infrastructure and system maintenance, web hosting, and the design and
development of complex IT:systems to a client's specifications (design'and build). These services are provided on.a-time and material
basis, as a fixed price contract or as a fixed price per measure of output contract, and thecontract terms generally range from less
than onc ycar to-tcn ycars. Revenuc from IT data centre and busiricss process transformation outsou:cmg contracts is rccognised in
the year. the services are provided using-either an objective measure of output or a straight-ling basis over the term of the contract.
Under the output method, the amount of revenue recognised. is based on the services delivered in the year as stated in the contract.

Revenue from application management services, technology infrastructure and system maintenance, and web hosting contracts is
recognised .on-a straight-line basis over the term of the contract

Revenue from time and material contracts is recoghiséd at the contractual rates as labour hours.are delivered and direct expeénses
are incurred. Revenue related to extended warranty and product maintenance. contracts is deferred and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the delivery period.

Services (continued)

Revenue from fixed-price design ard build contracts is recognised where the.outcome of a contract can be reliably estimated, and
reveniie and costs are recognised under input method wherein revenue is recognised .over time based on progress measured to
satisfaction of performance obllgatnon This is consistent with provisions of IERS 15-where performarice obligation is satisfied over
time. Under this method, revenue is either recognised based on the costs incurred to date as a percentage of the total estimated costs
to fulfil the contract or 6n an output méthod upon customers" acceptance of the project's stage of delivery. If circumstances arise
that may change the-original estimates of revenues, costs, or extent of progress toward completion, then revisions to the estimates
are made. These revisions may result in increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs, .and such revisions are reflected in
the statement of profit and loss.in the year in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

The Company performs ongoing profitability analysxs of its services contracts in order to determine whether the latest estimates;
such as revenue, costs of sales or profits, require updating. If, at any time, these estimates indicate that. the contract will be
unprofitable, the entire estimated loss for-the remainder of the contract is recorded immediately.

In some of the Company's services contracts the: Company bills the client prior to performing the services. These balances are held
as contract liabilities in the balance. sheet until the service is performed. In other services contracts. the Company performs the
services prior to billing the client. These balances are held as amounts recoverable on contracts in the balance sheet until the client
is billed. Billings usually occur in the month. after the Company performs the services or in accordance with specific contractual
provisions.

Multiple-element arrangements

‘The Company enters .into multiple-element software and non-software related revenue arrangements, which may include any
combination of services, software and hardware. A multiple-element arrangement is separated into more than one unit.of accounting
if all of the following criteria are met:
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CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

2) Summary of significant accounting policies (continucd)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Software related revenue arrangements

e  The functionality of the delivered ¢lements is not dependent on the undelivered elements.

e  There is a fair value to the undelivered elements.

e Delivery of the delivered elements represents the culmination of the earnings process for those elements.

Non-software related Revenue arrangements
e The delivered items have value to the client on a standalone basis.
o  There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items.

Interest income
Interest income is recogniscd in the statcment of profit and loss using the effective interest method.

Finance costs .
Finance costs of debt; including interest, premiums payable on séttlement and dircet issue costs aie charged to the statérment of
profit and loss in the financial year in which they fall due.

Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the
extent that. it relates to items recognised in-other comprehensive income or dircctly in shareholder’s funds. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in-other comprchensive income or directly in sharcholders’ funds, respectively.

The current income tax chargge is calculated on the:basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the balance
sheet in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Provisions are made where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable-or recoverable on differences between the carrying-amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corrcaponding tax bases uscd in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generaily rccogniscd for- all taxable tcmporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probablc that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilitics are not recognised if the temporary difference ariscs from the initial recognition of goodwill
or from.the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilitics in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been cnacted or substantively enacted by the date of the
balance sheet and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised of the deferred income tax habnhty is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recogniscd -only to thc cxtent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be. utiliscd. The cafryinig amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balarice sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it-is no longer probable that sufficient taxablc profits will be available to allow all o part of the asset
to be recovered.

The measureiment of deferred tax liabilities and asscts reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in ‘which
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting year, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc offsct when therce is a Icgally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the financialyear 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

Intaiigible assets

‘Goodwill :

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of trade:and assets of for

value: of the consideration: paid over: the apgregate fair- value of the: ldentlf' able assets and habllmes acq
annuaily for impairfhéiit, of iore frequently ifievents:or changes in circumstances.indicate:impairment may

atcost less accumilited impairmicnt-losscs; Tmpaitmcnt 168s¢s:on goodwill are: rccogmscd inithe statément-of proﬁt and loss..

Internally development software
Direct labour and:overhead:costs incurred:in-the development of:software.may be capitalised. Costs incurred to develop commercial
‘software prodiicts are capitalised aftér techinological feasibility has; een tablistied:. Costs:ificurred to establish technologlcal;
feasibility:are expensed:as incurred in ftwar italised where sich enhancements extend the life-or
significantly.cxpand'the matketability- of such: producla

Thise costs are: atriortised .o 4 straight-line basig over their expected ‘usefiil lives from the: date the product eriters commercial
-exploitation:(currently:three to seven years).

uscful life. Provxsxon is: made for any unpaument

In!ellectual propern

¢ tion cost:and :amortised on a straight-line basis over-their-estimated useful lives up-to a
de for any impairment. .

Purchased'software.

either the life:of an associated licence of thirée to five years,

lmpatrment of mlangzble assets

useful life:and. amomsanc;f\ mélhod ére -rév{éwed at the-end of each reportmg period,. with the eﬁ'ec,; of.any:¢ nges in estlmateg
‘beingaccourited for on a prospective/basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. that are acquired, separately are:carried at
cost lesgageumulated: lmpanrment losses.

‘Tangible assets

‘Tangible.assets:are stated at’historical:cost less:depreciation:and any:provision-for. impairment. Historical costiincludes: expenditure:
that:is directly:attributable.to the-acquisition:of the'items:.

Subsequ‘ent costs-are includedin: the asset’s. carrying amount :or. recognised as:a separate asset, only -when it.i§.probable.that future
economic:benefits: assoc1ated wnth the item will flow to the; Company andthe'costof the item can be'measured reliably. The carrying
lised. All other repairs-and maintenance:are:charged to. the statement of profit and:loss during

the: ﬁhﬁnéml year io w Yich: they are mcun'ed

Land is- not depreclated and assets under- construction are not depreciated untnl ready for. use. Depreciation -on other assets is
calcilated sing the straight-line iéthiod t6 allocate their ¢ost amount:to their residual values over-their estimated useful fives; as.
follows:

Furniture and fitting$ ‘Fivetoten years

Leasehold improvements ‘Shorter of lease tern'and ten years
Computer and related' equipment  Three to:seven years or:useful life
Freehold buildings Forty years

Gains-and losses. on disposals .are determined’ by comparing the ‘proceeds -with. the ccarrying aniount ‘and are: recognised iin. the
statement:of profit and'loss: '
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

2) Summary of Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted. for at cost, less, where appropriate, allowances for impaitinent.

Impairment of investments

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its investments to determme whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior yéars. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of ﬂmshed goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based 6n normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs: Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business; less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Long-term contracts

Costs on outsourcing contracts are generally expensed as incurred. However certain costs incurred upon the initiation of an
outsourcing contract are deferred and expensed as and when performance obligation is satisfied over the life of the contract. These
costs consist of contract acquisition and transition costs, including the costs of due diligence after competitive selection and costs
associated with installation of systems and processes. These costs are recorded as contract work in progress on the balance sheet.
Costs incurred for bid and proposal activity are expensed as incurred.

Costs on major fixed price contract projects are deferred as contract work in progress and released to the Statenient of profit and
loss as and when performance obligation is satisfied over time. Contract provisions for work in progress risks and contingencies are

Financial instruments .
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method, less any appropriate provision for impairment. The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the
expected credit loss which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk
charactéristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The group has therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

They are included in current assets, except for payment terms greater than twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets.

Contract assets
Contract assets are recogmsed when the Company has transferred goods or services to the customer but where the Company is yet
to establish an unconditional right to consideration. Contract assets are treated ‘as financial assets for impairment purposes.

Customer acquisition costs
Customer acquisition costs are capitalised as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customner and
are expected to be recovered. Customer acquisition costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained, or which are not otherwise
recoverable from a customer are expensed as incurred to statement of profit and loss. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
where the contract term is less than one year is immediately expensed to statement of profit and loss.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

2) Summary of significant accounting policies (continucd)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of ﬁnancial assets

The Company assesses at the.end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial assctis impaired. The
Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the expected credit loss which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all financial assets. :

Derecognition of a financial asset

The Company derecognises a financial asset only wheén the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company
neilher lransfers, nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of owncrship and continucs to control the transferred asset, the
Company recoghises .its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank ovcrdrafts. In the balance sheet, bank

“overdrafls are e.hown within borrowings i m current ligbilitics.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and cquity instruments arc classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.

Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilitics for goods and servwes provided to the Company for goods and services prior to the end of the
financial year and are yet to be paid.

Derivative financial instruments

Decrivatives arc initially recogniscd at fair value on the datc a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-mcasured
at their fair value: The method of recognising any resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hiedging
instrument and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss. Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair valie biedges are recorded
in the statement of profit and loss, together with any changes in the fair values of the hedged assets or habllmes that are attributable
to the hedged risk.

Finance costs and debt .

Finance costs of debt are recognised in the statcment of profit and loss over the term of such investients at a constait rate on the
carrying amount. Debt is initially stated at the amount of the net proceeds after the deduction of issue costs. The carrying amount is
increased by the finance cost in respect of the accounting period and reduced by repayments made in the period.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent the Company's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer and are recognised when a
customer pays -consideration, or when thc Company recognises a receivable to reflect its uaconditional right (v consideration
(whichever is earlier) before the Company has transferred the goods or services to the customer.

Provisions
Provisions are recoghised when the Company has a present-obligation (Icgal or constructive) as a result of @ past évent, itis probable
that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is thc best cstimatc of the consideration required to seltle the present obligation al the reporting
date, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Company has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised
3 valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or aiivuncing its main
features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expendituses arising from the
restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the entity.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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2) Summary of significant accounting policics (continucd)
Leases
The Company as lessee

Right-of-use assets

A right-of-use asset is recognised at the commenceinent date of a Icasc. The right-of-usc asset is mcasurcd:at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of thc lcase liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at.or before the commencement date
nct of any lease incentives reccived, any -initial dircot costs incurred, and; except where included in the cost of inventories, an
cstimate of costs expected to be incurred for-dismantling and removing the underlying assct, and restoring the site or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the-unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the
asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the lcased asset at the end of the lease term, the
depreciation is over its estimidted useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to-impairment or adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

:Average periods that have been applied following the length of lease periods have been:

Buildings Seven years
Computers Three years
Automobiles Two years

Office equipment Seven years

The Company has clected not to recognisc a right-of: use asset and corresponding leasc liability for short-term leases with terms of
12 months orless and leascs of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are expensed to tho statoment of profit and logs as
incurred.

Lease liabilities

A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease: The lease liability is initially recognised-at the present value of
the lease payments to be made over-the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily deterniined, the Company's incremental borrowing ratc. Leasc payments comprisc of fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lcase payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts cxpected to be. paid under residual value
guarantees; exercise price of a purchasc option when the excrcise of the option is reagonably-ocrtain to occur; and any anticipated
termination penalties. The variable lease paymerits that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Lcase liabilitics arc mcasured at amortised cost using the cffective intercst method. The carrying amounts are remeasured if there is
a change in the following: futurc lease payments ariging from a change in-an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease term;
certainty of a purchasc option and tcrmination penaltics. When a lcasc liability is remeasured, an adjustment is made to the
corresponding right-of use asset, or to statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written
down.

The Company as lessor

Amounts due from lcgsees under finance leases arc recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s nct .investment in the
lcases. Finance lcase income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. .
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2) Summary of significant accounting policics (continucd)

Rctircment benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Company are funded by contributions from the Company and employees. The Company
operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans:

Defined benefit section
The defined benefit plan defined an amount of pension benefit an employee will receive on retirement, dependent-on one or more
factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balanoe sheet in respeet of the defined benefit pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period, less the fair value of the plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present-valuc of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have térms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
refuted pension-obliguation, Incountries where there is no decp market in such bonds, the market ratc on government bonds arc used.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changcs in actuarial assumptions arc charged or credited
to sharcholder’s funds in other comprchensive income in the period in which they arise. The amount charged or credited to finance
: :cosls IS ar ncl mtcrcst amount calculalcd by applymg lh\. hdblllly dlSCOUﬁl ratc o the iicl d\.f' m,d punsnon li ‘bilil‘y‘ or asset. Past

The Trustee recognises that, with the development of modem financial instruments, it would be possible to select investments that
produce cash flows similar to the estimated liability cash flows. However, in order to meet the long-term funding objective within
a level of contributions that the Company has indicated it is willing to make, the Trustee has agreed to take investment risk relative
to the liabilities. This taking of investment risk seeks to target-a greater investment roturn than the matching asscts would provide
whilst maintaining a prudent approach to mecting the Scheme’s liabilitics.

Defined contribution section :
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company
has no legal or constructive obligation to make further contributions if the fund-does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the bencfits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For dcfined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Company has no furthcr payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions arc rccogniscd as an cmployce benefit cxpense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in futurc payments is availablc.

Share-based payment

The Company's ultimate parent company, DXC Technology Company, has granted rights to its equlty instruments to certain
employees of the Company. These arrangements are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, and a
capital contribution is recognised to the cxtent that thc Company is not charged by its parcnt for the cost of sharc-based payments
to employees. Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instrument at the grant
date.

The fair value determined at the grant datc of the cquity-sctticd share-based payments is cxpenscd on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the DXC Technology Company’s estimate of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the cffect
of non-market based vesting conditions: The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the reviscd cstimate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves.
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2) Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current-assets and disposal groups as:held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and disposal groups classificd as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to scll. Costs to sell arc the incremental costs dircctly
attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for salc classification is regarded as mct only when the salc is highly probable and:the asset or disposal group
is available for immecdiate-sale in its present condition. Actions required to completc the sale should indicate that it is unlikcly that
significant changes to the salc will be ‘made-or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Managemént must be committed to the
plan to scll the assct-and the sale expected to be completed-within onc:ycar from the date of the classification.

Assets and liabilitics classificd as held for salc arc presented scparately a3 current itcms in the statcmcnt of financial position.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinucd operation if it is a component of an cntity that either has been disposed of, or is classified
as held for sale, and: ) .

- Represents a separatc major line of business or geographical arca of operations;
~ Is part of a single co-ordinated.plan to-dispose of a separate major linc of busincss-or gcographical arca of operations or;
«.Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a singlc amount as profit or
loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit or loss.

Additional disclosures are provided inrnotc 27.-All 6ther notes to the financial statcments includc-amouats for continuing opcrations,
unless indicated otherwise.

3)  Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported for assets and liabilitics ds at the balance sheet datc and the amounts-reported for revenucs and expenscs during
the year. However, the naturc of estimation mecans that actual outcomes could differ from thosc-¢stimatcs:

Critical judgemerits in applying the Company’s accounting policies

Tho following are the critical judgements,apart from those involving-cstimationa (which are presented scparately below). that the
directors have made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have thc most significant cffect on the
amounts recognised in financial statements.

i. Revenue recognition

As discussed in notc 2, the majority of our revenuc is recognised based on objective critéria and does not require significant estimates:
that may change over time. However; the rest of the arrangements are subject to specific accounting guidance that may require
significant judgements, including contracts subject to input mcthod of accounting, contracts that includc multiplc-cicment
deliverables, and contracts subject to software accounting guidance. These judgements arc'madc-on a contract by contract basis and
a different asscssment would result in.a change to the amount of rcvenuc recognised. In making their judgement, the -dircctors
considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenuc as sct out in IFRS 15.

Multiple-element arrangements

Certain contracts providc a rangc-of scrvices or clements to our customers, which may include a combination of services, products
or both, As a result, significant judgement may be required to determine the appropriate accounting, including whether the elementzs
specified in a multiplc-clement arrangement should be treated as separate performance obligation for revenue recognition purposes.
-and, when considered appropriatc, how the total estimated revenuc should be allocated among the elements and the timing of revenue
recognition for each element. Allocation of total contract consideration to each element requires cstimating the fair value or scliing
price of each clement on a rcasonable basis. Once the total estimated revenuc has been allocated to the various conliact elemeénts,
revenue for each element is recognised based on the relevant revenue recognition method for the services performed or elements
delivered if the revenue recognition criteria have been met. Estimates of total revenuc at contract inccption often differ matcrially
from actual revenue due to volume differences, changes in technology or othcr factors which may not-be foreseen at inception.

These estimates and judgements arc madc on-a contract by contract basis and a diffcrent assessment would result in a change to the
amount of revenue recognised.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

3)  Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) -

if. Retirement benefit obligations

The Company ‘has ‘an obligation to pay pension benefits. to certain employees. The. cost of these benefits and the present value of
the obligation depend on @ number of factors, including; life expectancy, salary increases, asset valuations and thc discount rate
used to' calculate the present value of the liabilities: The Company uses impartial actuarial advicc to form these: estimates and
judgements.

Details of the Company’s defined benefit pension schemes are set out in note 22, .including tables showing the sensitivity of the -
pension scheme obligations and assets to different. actuarial assumptions. The- effects of changes-in the actuarial assumptions
underlying the benefit-obligation and discount rates and the differences between expected and. actual'returns 6n the schemes’ assets

are classified as actuarial gains and losses.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty ‘ ‘
Arcas for-which there are major sources. of estimation unccrtainty at the reporting period end that have a.signiticant.risk of causing
a material adjustment to be made to the carrying value arnounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below.

Therg is a imajor source of estimation of uncertainty in the application:of the input method and software sales. These-are summarised

v e o e ok 7 ot et e i 2 aetr Sy v, st wwr WY, S s mea o v s o e———

* Performance obligation satisfied over time (input method)
" Revenice from fixed-price design-and build contracts'is recognised where the outcome of a contract can be reliably estimated, -and-
‘revenize and costs-are recognised under input method whercin revenuc. is. recognised over. time based on progress measured to.

satisfaction of performance.obligation. This is consistent with provisions of IFRS 15 where performance obligation is satisfied over
time. Undcr this mcthod, revénue is either recognised based on the costs incurred to date as a.percentage of the total estimated costs
to fulfil the contract or on an output method upon customers' acceptance of the project's stage of delivery. If cifcumstances arise
that may change the original cstimates of revenues, costs, or extent of progress toward completion, then revisions to the estimates
are made. These revisions may resuit in increases or decreases.in €stimated. révenues or costs, and such revisions are reflected. in
the Statcment of profit and loss in the year in which the circumstances that give:risc to the revision become.-known by management.

Revenue recognition

Estimates of total revenue at contract inception may differ materially from actual revenue due to volume differenices, changes in
icchnology.or other factors which may notbe forescen at inception. These estimates are.made on a:contract by contract basis and:a
different-assessment would result in a change to the amount. of revenue recognised.

Software sales

If significant .customisation is rcquired: in the delivery of a proprietary software product, and the fair value .can be reasonably
determined to support accounting for the:software as a separate unit of account, the software is determined to be.delivered as the
customiisation sérvices are performed:and revenue is recognised in accordance with the input- method described above: In such ¢asés,
cost and profit.estimates are requircd over the life-of the project, and changes in such estimates can have a matérial effect on results.

Taxation
The Company is subject to tax in a number of jurisdictions and estimation is required in determining the provision for income taxes.

“The:Company providcs.for futurc liabilitics in respect of uncertain tax positions where additional tax may become payable in future

periods and such provisions are based on management’s-assessment of exposures.

_Dcfcrrcd tax liabilitics:are gencrally provided for in:full and deferred tax assets.are recognised to the extent that itis judged probable

that future taxable profit will arise against which the temporary. differences will be utilised. The valie.of defeived tax asset as on
the balance sheet date is-£nil 2020: £157,630,000).

4) Financial instruments
The Company-has no financial asscts measured at fair value through profit and loss.
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Notcs to the financial statements (continued)
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5) Revenue
An analysis of revenue by geographical market is given below:

United Kingdom

United States of America
Other Europe

Other Rest of World

An analysis.of revenue by business segment is given below:

Financial year
1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021

Restated
Financial year
1 April 2019 te:
31 March 2020

£'000 £'000

492,645 582,475

14,365 6,946

38,342 42,503

6,995 3,484

552,347 635,408
Restated

Financial year
1 April 2020 to

Financial year
1 April 2019 to

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

£'000 £'000

Sale of services 478,416 598,307
Hardware sales 73,931 37.101
552,347 635,408

Remaining performance obligations

Remaining performance obligations represent the aggregate amount of the transaction prices in contracts allocated to performance
obligations-not delivered, or partially undelivered, as of the end of the reporting period. Remaining performance obligation estimates
arc subjcct to change arc affccted by several factors; including terminations, changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations,
adjustments. for revenue that has not mateérialised and adjustmerits for currency.

Contract Balances
The following table provides information. about the balances of the Company's trade receivables and contract assets and contract.
liabilities:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

£'000 . £2000
Trade receivables, net 80,729 89,999
Contract assets 5,006 13,647
Contract liabilities — short-term 69,107 82,128
Contract liabilities — long-term 29,484 39,279

Contract assets-are determined based on the following drivers — milestone billing and invoicing delay which affects the.performance
of the contract.

Contract liabilitics of prior ycar arc recognised as revenue in current year.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried forward contract
liabilities: :
Financial year Financial year
1 April 2020 to 1 April 2019 to
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£000 £000

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the 82,128 105,100
period

Revenue recognised in relation to prior periods
No revénue has been recognised in the current financial year relating to prior périods.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

6) Operating loss

Financial year

Financial year

1 April 2020 to 1 April 2019 to
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£°000 £000
Operating loss is stated after (crediting)/charging:
Loss on disposal of tangible assets 764 329
Research and development costs 2,097 5,682
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries . 16,986 8,735
Impairment charge/(written back) of trade receivables (16,347) (6,944)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 2,564 (3,787)
Depreciation:
Owned assets (note 12) 21,290 16,496
Right-of-usc assets (notc 13) 9,177 9,965
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 11) 2,109 2,895
Auditor’s remuneration:
Audit fee:
Company 1,140 1,140
. Audit fees borne for other group companies S 191 399
Non-audit fee: - ]
Other liquidation / restructuring / reorganisation project scrviees. 249 632
‘Other taxation advisory services 524 215
Government grants received (204) (552)
Lease payments:
Minimum lease payments 4,320 4,404
Short term lease payments - 171
Income from subletting right of use assets (2,058) (1,904)

Auditor’s remuncration in respect of other services relates solcly to-duties performed in the UK.

7) Restructuring expense

Financial year
1 April 2020

Financial year
t April 2019

to 31 March 2021 to 31 March 2020

£'000

Restructuring costs - severance / pension augmeritation (9,448)

£'000

(14,876)

During the year, the Company continued its restrucluring programme resulling in cost of £9,448,000 (2020: £14,876,000). The
restructuring progfamme was undertaken during the year to right size the workforce and is not considered by the director to. be a

fundamental reorganisation of the business.

8) Employees and directors
Employees
Employec costs during the financial year (including directors):
: Financial year
1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021

£°000
Staff costs during the year
Wages and salaries 128,462
Social security costs 15,883
Other pension costs (Note 22)* : 29,908
Total staff costs 174,253

Financial year
1 April 2019 to
31 March 2020

£000

138,392
17,231
20,967

176,590

*Qther pension costs include the Company’s costs relating to defined benefit schemes and defined contributions schemes.
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Notcs to the financial statcments (continiied)

For the financial year 1 April 2020-to 31 March 2021

8) Emiployeesand:directors (continued)

The.average: monthly number of persons. (including executive directors) employed by the Company duringthe: financial year was:

Average number:of persons employed (including directors)
Managerial ‘and professional
‘Sales.and.operations:staff.

Directors

The directors* emoluments: were: as follows:

Emoluments
Gains made on the-exercise of share options
Company contributions to defined benefit:schemes:

The:number of 'diéect‘ors whe:

Are menbers of a money: purchasé scheme
Exercised share options

Highest paid diréctor

The highest paid director’s eémoluments were: as follows:

Emoluiments
Gains imade on the éxercisé of sharé options
Company contributions to defined contribution schemes.

Remuneration borne by other entities

‘The amounts paid to onc-of the director amounts to. £222,326 ‘which is'borme by DXCUK International Limited.

No. No.
309 588
2,065 2,099
2,374 2,687

Financial year
1 April 2020

Financial year
1 April 2019

to-31 March 'to 31'March
2021 2020
£000 £°000
‘897 37
118 -
1,015 37
No. No.
1 -

Financial year
1 April 2020

Financial year
© 1 April 2019

to:31 March’ to 31 March.
2021 2020

£000 £°000

552 -

118 -

670
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Not_es_ to the financial st”a'témehts', (continucd) )
For the financial year 1 April 2020to:31 March 2021
9) Finance incomie and expense

Finance incomeé

Financial ycar
1 April 2020

to 31 March 2021

£'000.

Interestreccivable:on Joans. to fellow group undertakings " 1,223
‘Bank intcrest income $5,913
‘Othier finance income ' : 660
Expected return:0n pension scheme assets (Note 22): . 44,836

52,632

Finaiice expense:
Financial year
1 April:2020

to:31.-March:2021

Financial year

‘1 April 2019

to 31 March 2020
£2000

1,012
9,317
42

| 42,551

52,922

‘Financial year
1.April 2019:
to 31 Marchi 2020, _

e e . il e+ i i e o i e b £:000 o1 arch o0, ”
Interest payable:on floans; from fellow group undertakings 10,065 9,431
Bank:loans aind-overdrafis 2,530 7,513
Interest on lease liabilities. 2,523 2,460
interest charged on pension scheme liabilities.(Note 22) 38,903 39,861
54,021 59,265
10) ‘Taxation
Current taxation. . ‘Financial year Financial year
1 April 2020 T April 2019
to:31 March 2021 :to:31 March.2020
£000 £2000
Current tax .
UK..corporation'tax on loss for'the year. 19%.(2020: 19%) - -
Adjustment in.respect of prior periods. : 95 32
Overseas tax 237 709
Research & development 48 130
Total current tax:charge 380 871
Deferred tax
Adjustmient ini respect.of prior. periods _ (5;665) (3,996)
Origination and reversal of‘timing differences 161,865 2,790
Impact of change in tax rate - (18,706)
Total deferred tax benefit 156,200 (19,912)
Tax credit ' 156,580 (19,041)
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Notés to the financial Statemerits (continued)

- For the financial yeai 1 April 2020 to. 31 March 2021

10)- Taxatioii:(continued)

Tax expenseincluded:in other comprehensive income:

Deferred tax
- rigifation and réver
~impact 'df:‘cliahge?m‘.tax rate

Total tax-expense in¢luded:in other-comprehensive income

Financial year

- L April:2020,

to-31 March:2021
-£2000.

1,429

The.tax rate for, the.current period remains unchanged from:the prior. period of 19%:

the: rate change effective from: Apnl 2023 will increase: these assets to £199; 094,000.

The:differences are:explained below;
i April:2020
to:31. March:2021
£000

Profit:/(loss) before tax
Profit/(loss) bcfore tax:multiplicd by the standard rate/ofitax in the UK 0f19% (2020 19%) 18,243
Effects.of; »
- Research:and development provision 48
2,475
{5,669),
- EXperises fiotdeductible:fortax purposes (23,824)
- Remeasurement:of-deferred tax.— change in UK tax rate; £

- Impdirment.of investment
= Adjustirients:to-tax-charge ‘in:respect of prior periods

- Group relief surrendered : 476
- Withholdiag:taxes : 237
136,910

27,585

= Movemerit ifi uiirecognised deferved tax asset
-Other

TFax.credit for the'year 156,580

Financial year

96,015

Financial-year
L April 2019

‘fo 31-March 2020

£000

19;892

19,892

10% rather than reduciig itto. 17%: from

¥ ¢ s 1625%, which is due to be effective
st Tuner2021 after the balarice sheet date: The impact on

Y€z
1 Apl‘ll 2019
‘to:31 . March 2020

£1000

(636)
21)

130

(3,963)
553
(18,706)
2,487
709

(130)

(19,041)
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Notes to thé financial statemeénts (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021
10): Taxation (continued)

‘Deferred taxation

The:deferred:tax asset /‘provision conisists-of the followinig déferred tix dssets: :
At31 March At 31 March

2021 - 2020

£2000 £2000

Deferred tax asscts duc within. 12: months - 17,876
Decferred tax liabilitics duc.within 12°months - -
Total ‘asset due within 12 fronthis - 7876
Deferred tax assets due:after 12 months 149,754
Deferred tax liabilities duetafler 12 months - -
“Total.asset duc after 12 months _ - 149;754

Total deferred tax asset - 157,630

The deferred tax asset'of £nil (2020: £157,630,000) has been'recognised within:non-current assets.

Moveinent in the: financial ‘yéar

Accelerated ‘Pension  Short-term. “Trading: Total
~ capital deficit ~ timing: losses:
allowances differefices

£1000 £'000 £'000: £'000 £'000

L April 2019 ' A 83968 (18.217) 4866 86993 157,610
Credited:/ (chiarged).to'the statement of profit'and loss 14,676 (5,325) 234. 10,327 19,912
Credited:to other comprehensive.income - (19,892) - - (19;892)
31 March 2020 98,644 '(43,434) 5,100 97,320, 157,630
Credited./ {charged)-to the statement:of profit:and loss (98,644) (729) (5,100) (51,728).  (156,201)
Charged to-other comprehensive.income - (1,429) . - - (1;429)

31 March 2021 - (45,592) - 45,592 -
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11) Intangible assets
. Internally.
Intellectual Patents and  devéloped Puréhased
Goodwill property licenses: software 'software Total
£000 £2000 -£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Cost

At 1 April 2020 13,214 14,521 1,425 70,797 95,154 195,114
Additions - - - - 4,522 2,435 6,957
Disposals - = (69,028) (1,972) (71;000)
Transfer-out - - - - A@,159) - 1,159)

At 31 March 2021 - 13,214 14,521 1,425 6,291, 94,458 129,909

Accumulated amortisation -

At I April 2020. 13,214 14,521 1,425 18,895 91,167 139,222
Charge, for the year - - o229 1,880 2,109
Dispogals * = = (12,833). (1;636) (14,469)
Transfer out: - - - - ®) 6).

At 31 March 2021 13,214 14,521 1,425 6,291 91,405 126,856

Net book'value

At 31 March 2021 - - - - 3.053 3,053

At 31 March 2020 - - 51902 3,087 55,889

41



CSC Computer Sciences Limited
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12) Tangible assets

Freehold Computer
land and Furniture Leasehold and related
buildings and fittings improvements equipment Total
£'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £°000
Cost
At 1 April 2020 127,928 5,028 52,973 175,961 361,890
Additions 1,664 168 920 17,263 20,015
Disposals (565) (255) - (9,583) (10,403)
Transfer from ROU 5,006 1,514 - 25,238 31,758
Transfer to held {or sale (18,189) (236) - (1,303) (19,728)
Transfer out - - - (10,269) (10,269)
At 31 March 2021 115,844 6,219 53,893 197,307 - 373,263
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2020 50,436 4,190 48,313 134,364 237,303
Charge for the year 4,147 . - 669 16,474 21,290 N
Disposals - (149) - (2.356) (1,505)
Transfer from ROU 1,048 909 - 22,645 24,602
Transfer to held for sale (10,046) (233) - (962) (11,241)
Transfer out - - - (3,165) (3,165)
At 31 March 2021 45,585 4,717 48,982 162,000 261,284
Net book value
At 31 March 2021 70,259 1,502 4,911 - 35,307 111,979
At 31 March 2020 77,492 838 4,660 41,597 124,587
13) Right-of-use assets
Land and Automobiles Computers Office Total
buildings equipment
£°000 £000 £000 £°000 £000
Cost
At 1 April 2020 22,434 51 44,887 1,337 68,709
Additions / Lease modifications 1,052 - 10,863 177 12,092
Disposals - (33) 951) - (984)
Transfer to PPE (5,006) (25,238) (1,514) (31,758)
At 31 March 2021 18,480 18 29,561 - 48,059
Accumulated depreciation
At | April 2020 3,861 27 36,952 536 41,376
Charge for the year 3,888 12 4,904 3713 9,177
Disposals depreciation - (23) (269) - (292)
Transfer to PPE (1,048) (22,645) (909) (24,602)
At 31 March 2021 6,701 16 18,942 - 25,659
Net book value
At 31 March 2021 11,779 2 10,619 - 22,400
At 31 March 2020 18,573 24 7,934 801 27,332
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Notes'to the financial statéements (continued)
For the financial'year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

14) Tnvestménts
Investments in

siibsidiaries
£2000
Cost
At 1-April 2020 246,856
Additions-during the financial year . 215,815
Disposals during the finan¢ial year : (278,266)
At 31 March 2021 184,405
Provision for impairment in;value )
At:1. April 2020 : 178,882
Increase:in provision : 16,986
Release.of provision due to disposal of investmerits ' ' (108,517)
At 31 March 2021 ' 87,351
Net book value
At:31 March 2021 97,054
At 31:March 2020 : . 67,974

Investment addition during ‘the financial year relates to CSC Deutschland Consulting: GMBH, DH OpCao UK. Ltd and F |xnet|x
Limited.

Disposal-of assets relates:to entities which got dissolved .and: merged, during ‘the year and the-corresponding, provision: relating to
those-disposals were also released: from provision for impairment,

Investnients are all stated at cost'less allowance:for impairment: The registered addresses of the subsidiaries and ofhers.are listed in
Annexure — 1 on-pages 60.

IS) Inventory

A€ 31 March At3} March

2021 2020.

£2000 £000

Finished goods ‘ 28119 29105
Deferred contract-costs: 42:501 44798
120,620 73,903

Ccriain.costs incurred upon. the initiation of an. outsourcing contract are deferred as contract work in-progress and expensed on a
stral ght line basis over the hfe ofthe contract. These: costs consxst of contract acqulsmon and transmon costs, including the costs.of

In ;addit‘_iqn,zg'thcr project ¢osts reldted to a major outsource coritract have been deferred as: contract - work in: progress in.line with
future milestone; revenue:recognition. These costs are expected to be-expensed over'the future life:of the contract which is greater
than one year.,
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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16) Trade and other receivables: disclosed as current assets

At31 March At 31 March

2021 . 2020

£°000 £°000

Trade receivables 80,729 89,999
Contract assets 5,006 13,647
Amounts recoverable on contracts 10,675 21,816
Amounts owed by parent undertakings 1,116 1,017
Amounts owed by fellow group undertakings 396,854 222,158
Corporation tax recoverable 15,912 26,082
Other debtors 14,770 25,692
Prepayments 73,536 75,662
598,598 476,073

The amounts owed by fellow group undertakings are not interest bearing-and repayable on demand.

Trade féceivables, contract assets and amounts recoverable ofi contraéts are stated aftet provision for impairirient of £213,000 (2020: T
£855.,000). ' :

17) Trade and other recéivables: disclosed as non-current assets
‘ ' At31 March At31 March

2021 2020
£000 £°000
Amounts owed by fellow group undertakings _ 40,000 40,000

The amounts owed by fellow group undertakings for £40,000,000 (2020: £40,000,000) is provided to Xchanging Global Insurance
Solutions Limited at an interest rate equal to {2 months GBP LIBOR plus 1.5% per annum and the loan is repayable on 30 March
2027.

18). Trade and other payables: disclosed as current linbilities
At31 March At 31 March

2021 2020

£2000 £°000

Bank loans and overdrafts 40,394 243,361
Trade payables 52,668 62,659 .
Amounts owed to fellow group undertakings 68,545 106,962
Other taxes and social security 27,752 12,138
Other creditors 11,798 1,407
Accrued expenses 49,212 66,183
Contract liabilities : 69,107 82,128
319,476 574,838

The amounts owed to fellow group undertakings are not interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021

19) Trade and other payables: disclosed as non-current liabilities
At 31 March At 31 March

2021 2020

£000 £000

Bank loans and overdrafts 63,009 63,009
Amounts owed to fellow group undertakings 357,808 357,453
Contract liabilities 29,484 39,279
Other creditors 23,109 4,867
473,410 464,608

The amounts owed to fellow group undertakings includes £247,570,000 (2020: £247,570,000) provided by VDXC Technology
Company. The principal amount due at maturity will be £250,000,000 (2020: £250,000,000). Tlie loan maturity date is 15 January
2025 with an effective interest rate of 2.97%.

£4,256,000°(2020: £4,256,000) relates to a loan provided by DXC UK Holdings I.td dand carries an interest of 2.91% per-annum and
the loan is repayable on 31 March 2023.

A loan of £104,900,000 (2020: £104,900,000) provided by DXC UK Holdings Limited repayable on 31 March 2023 carrying an
interest rate of 12 months GBP Libor +1.5%.

The Comipany has a loan arrangement with Commerzbank. The loan ispayable over a term of 15 years and is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

20) Provisions

Other
Restructuring provisions Total
£000 £°000 £000
At 1 April 2019 9,975 306 10,281
Amounts utilised (17,005) (306) (17,311)
Unused amounts reversed to statement of profit and loss during the financial (30,624) S (30,624)
year
Transfers to pension augmentation (10,487) - (10,487)
Additions to the statement of profit and loss during the financial year 50,652 7,621 58,273
‘At 31 March 2020 - 2,511 7,621 10,132
Amounts utilised (8,828) (7,621) (16,449
Unused amounts reversed to statement of profit and loss during the financial (5,185) - (5,185)
year
Transfers to pension augmentation - -
Additions to the statement of comprehensive income 13,889 - 13,889

At 31 March 2021 ' 2,387 - 2,387

The restructuring provision relates to a programme to right size the workforce and is not considered to be a fundamental
reorganisation of the business. The restructuring programme. is still ongoing due to the fact that the severance process for certain
employees is still in place; while there is a probable.cash outflow in this regard in the future, there is no reliable estimate on the
tenure.

The charge in the statement of profit and loss for the current year under exceptional items for restructuring is £9,448,000 (2020:
£14,876,000) which includes both severance cost of £4,883,000 (2020: £16,855,000) and pension cost of £4,565,000 (2020: pension
credit £1,979,000) restructuring costs.

Other provisions relate to the contract loss provision. This represents management’s best estimate of the Company’s liability to
settle service credits currently in negotiation on several long-term contracts.
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21): Shire-based payment: :

"The:: Company has @ share:zoption :scheme. for purchasing shares in DXC ‘Technology Company (DXC),. the ultimate parent
undes 0 stock incentive plans i S sharé options, réstrictéd stock:and other share-
based incentives to employees-;upon terms ‘approved by the: Compensation‘Comimitte¢ 'of the Board-of directors.

Thefopt_lonsvves_t.one-t}urd annually on each-of the first three:anniversaries of the grant date. 1f the options remain unexercised after.
a period of ten:years fromi the date.of grant, the oplions expire. Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Company:before-the
options:vest. ,

‘The:Company recognises a share-based :payment ‘expense based:on the fair value:of the ‘awards. granted,.and :an-equivalent credit
.dnrectly in cqulty as:a caprtal conmbunon

:average contractualilife of 574. days), No optlons were; granted-:dunng;the year ended.3;1 March2021 (202 0), atia” wdghted average
,;pnce of $ml (2020 $ml). per: share ‘No: ophons were exercised in’ (he. ﬁnancnal year ended 31 Manch 202! (2020 resultmg in4, 685
; h . S L b i i 5 N

SUs are settled i

LA A MUANS

:.d'mdcnd cquival ents:.arc forfcltcd

"I'hc wclghted average ! share pnces for RSUsoutstanding. at 31 March 2021 ‘was: $27 4] (2020 $55. 37) ‘During the fi nnnclal penod
: "RSUs: ed was 385,45 105;3; (2¢

©of RSUs outstanding asiat31 March 120 1 was 361;541. (2929. !56 526). The aggsqga.te-d s.s,t.lm@t,qd fair valie o cthe_s.e Quts‘tandmg
'RSUs:was'$9,909:222.:(2020: $8,666, 690) '
22) Retirement benefit obligations

The Company prowdcs rctirement benefils to‘certain.cmployces through three pension;schemes (CSC Main schetne; 2005 schieme:
.and iSOFT :scheme)_proyiding benefits based ‘on final pensionable ;pay. During the FY21, the €SC. Main scheme and: the iSOFT;
plan:Were.merged: into. the 2005:Scheme on an unsectionalised basis: This was completed on: 12: October 2020:

the statement of ;profit-and loss in respect of both this defined.benefit section and the defined contribution
.section :0f the scheme. includes .£117,500.(2020:: £nil) relating to-directors and net. expense of £38, 638 000 .-(2020 £20, 967 000)
relating to:other employees. In the current findncial year; there weretermindtion benefits of £7,884i( 2 e
the restructuring plans:implemented in the.year: There.i isa pensnon. ability:within:accruals of £297; (2(
to pension:contributions:not paid-over by-the financial year:end.

‘The, pension charge i

The €CSC 2005 schenie (which has been re-nanied. the DXC Pension Plan from ] September '202'1) irichudes a, small populitio: of
:_actlve members (from the ongmal CSC 2005 scheme), but the pnme fundmg responsrblhty, in Ime w1th the, fundmg agreement

the ongomg and :deﬁcrt-conmbutrons in accordance wnh‘:;lts'obhg tlons as agreed through"t.he‘inenmai valuatlon of the plan

Defined benefit:schemeés’
The: Company. P ites. in:defiied benefit schiemes for qualifying eimployeés as thentioned below, the schiémes. are subject 10.
regulation.under the:funding regime set'out:in part'II-of the:Pensions: Act 2004.

»  @SC ‘Computer. Sciences. Ltd Pension Scheme:
, The pension cost is:asséssed in: accordance with the advice:of a proféssionally. quahﬁed actuary “This:scheme ‘merged’ with.2005
scheifi¢ during:the finaticial’year

s CSCComputer Scighces Ltd 2003 Pensior:Scheme
The scheme:commenced in January:2005.. T
- 2021 by:a qualified independent actuary.

£124:9 million)
ued 1. fiiembers;

and the actuarial value:of the-assets was sufficient to-cover 113,4%(2020:121.5%):of the benefits thatihad.a

after:allowing for'expected future increases.in:earnings.
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22) Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Defined benefit schemes (continued)

The Company paid contributions of at least 30.1% of pensionable salaries for the period to 30 November 2019 and pays 41% as of
I December 2019 in respect of current accrual for 2005 scheme members, with active members paying a further 2% (on average)
of pensionable salaries. No deficit recovery payments are currently paid.

The weighted average duration for this scheme is 16 years. The proportion of pensioners liability to those members who are yet to
reach retirement is 54%.

e  CSC Computer Sciences Ltd SMS Pension Scheme
The scheme was acquired on 29 March 2013 from iSOFT Medical Systems Limited as part of the trade and asset transfer under the
lcgal cntity rationalisation. programme. This scheme got-merged with 2005 scheme during the financial year.

Balancc held in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021 Pension Pension
Asset Liability
£000 £°000

CSC Computer Sciences Ltd Pension Scheme -
CSC Computer Sciences. Ltd 2005 Pension Scheme . 239,960 -
CSC Computer Sciences Ltd SMS Pension Scheme - -

239,960 -

As at 31 March 2021 a potential deferred tax liability of £45,632,000 (2020: £43,434,000) arises in relation to the net defined benefit
pension scheme net surplus of £239,960,000 (2020: £228,598,000). This deferred tax liability has been included within the net
dcferred tax asscts recognised in note 9 to the. financial statemenis.

CSC Computer Sciences Ltd Pension Scheme:
An actuarial valuation -of the CSC Computer Sciences Limited pension scheme was updated to 31 March 2021. The principal
assumptions underlying the actuarial assessments of the present value of plan liabilities as at 31 March 2021 are shown below:

At At

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

% %

Expected rate of increase in salaries - N/A

* Expected rate of pension increases - 0
Discount rate - 2.43
Inflation assumptions - 1.84

No dcficit funding has been made during the financial year.

Mortality Assumptions for the plan are as follows:

Invcstigations have been carried out within the past three years into. the- mortality experience of the Company's defined benefiu
schemcs. These concluded that the current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future changes in mortality rartes.
The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 635 are:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Years Years
Member age 65:
Males - 22.6
Females - 245
Member age 45:
Males - 239
Females - 26.0
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22) Retiremenit benefit:obligations (continiied)
Defined benefit schemes:(continued)

CSC Compiter Seiciices Litd. Peiision Scheme (continued)
The assets and liabilities of the pension scheme, alorig with the €xpected rates ofireturn.on sclieme dssets are:showir below:
Expected rate Value.at; 'Expected rate: Value at.
of return at 31 March of return at, 31 March
31 March 2023 2021 31 March 2020 2020
% £°000 % £7000:

‘Equities A . - - :6:04 838,457
Bonds 1.25 540,469
Liability driven instrument - 303,696
-Cash-and.other assets, - 8,878.

‘Total.market value of assets - 1,691,500
Actuarial:value;of liabilities = (i_I,4_89,,607)1

e opovm i —romer et 5y 4o o remarconeanmy It e . e e, S a1 ey e b A e ke, o OO A

***—‘*j,sutplusinﬁh’e;‘sé_hieme; o — —_—— e ———————— "“101";89,5

Movements in the.actuarial value of scheme assets:are:

31 March 2021, 31 March 2020
£2000 £000

-Opening value: 1;691,500: 1,691,314
Expected:reétum on scheme assets 30,509 38,596-
Actuarial gaifis: ' - 52,343 12,064
Contributions: from.sponsoring:companies. a 9:281
Contributions:from:scheme members: {261) (348)
Benéfits paid. (45,205). (59,407)
Business combinations/divestitures/ transfers: 1(1,728,886) -

- 1,691,500

‘Movements in the actuarial value of scheme liabilities are:
‘31 March:2021  31:March2020.
£'000 £'000

Opening liability: (1,489;607): (1,585,373).
Current service cost: (262) 974)
Interest cost. (26;708) (36,167)
Actuarial gains = 77,201
Benefits paid ) 45,205 59,407
Administration expenses . 261 348
Termination benefits. (259) (4,049)
Ameéndments 119 -

‘Business ‘combinations/divestitures/ transfers 1,471,489 -

- (1,489,607
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22) ‘Retirement benefi¢ obligations: (continued)
Defined benefit:scheines (continued)

CSC;?Comput‘er Sciences Ltd Pension Scheme (continued)
Amounts included within:operating loss are:

Current service cost
Past service cost
Termination benefit

Total amounts included within.operatingloss ~

Amountscredited:/ (charged) to other finance income are:

‘Ex_p‘ected refurn on pension ‘scheme . assets.
interest charged:on pension: scheme liabilities

Net return
The amoints recognised in the:statemeiit of coniprehensive-income are:

Actuarial gain on plan assets
Changes in assumptions underlying the present' value of the scheme liabilities

Total actuarial gain/ (loss) recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

The movement in the pension surplus during the.year was: ;

Opéning surplus:

Contributions

Current service-cost.

Other finance income

Actuarial gain

Past service cost.

Termination bénefits
Business.combinations/divestitures/-transfers

Closing surplus

Yeai ended Yéar ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£2000 £2000

(262y (974)

¢119): .

259): 14,049)

(‘6’40) C o (5,023)

Year ended Year-ended.
31 March.2021 31.March 2020:

£°000 "£2000

30,509 38,596
(26:708) (36,167)
3,801 2,429
Yeidr énded Year ended
31.March 2021 31 March:2020
£000. £2000

52,343 12,064

- 77,201

52,343 89,265

Yéar éndéed  Year énded
31 March 2021 31 March. 2020

£000 £2000
201.893 105,941

- 9,281

(262) (974)
3,801 2,429
52,343 89,265
(119) -
(259) (4,049)
(257,397) -
201,893
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22) Retircment benefit obligations (continued)

Defined benefit schemes (continued)

CSC Computer Sciences Ltd Pension Scheme (continued)
History of experience gains and losses:

Year ended Period ended Period ended Period ended Period ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 1 April
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Difference between the expected and 7
actual rcturn on schemec asscts (£°000) (52,343) (12,064) (54,624) (38,511) (265,025)
As a % of the scheme assets - -1% -3% -2% . -16%
Expericnce (losscs) / gains on scheme
liabilities (£'000) - (52,998) 10,301 15,278 (6,196)
As a % of the scheme liabilities - 4% 1% 1% 0%
Total.actuarial loss /(gain) recognisedin o -
other comprehensive income (£°000) (52,343) 89,265 (7,578) 81,781 (14,656)
As a % of the scheme liabilities - 6% 0% 5% -1%

CSC Computer Sciences Ltd 2005 Pension Scheme:

An actuarial valuation of the CSC Computer- Sciences Ltd 2005 pension scheme was updated to 31 March 2021. The principal
assumptions underlying the actuarial asscssments of the present valuc of plan liabilitics as at 31 March 2021 are shown below:

Expected rate of increase in salaries
Expected rate of pension increases
Discount rate

Inflation assumptions

The average employer contribution for the year has been £347,000 per month.

Mortality assumptions for the plan are as follows:

At 31 March At 31 March
2021 2020

% %

2.53 1.78

2.07 241

2.53 1.78

Investigations have been carried out within the past three years into the mortality experience of the Company's defined benefit
schemes. These concluded that the current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future changes in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

Member age 65:
Males
Females

Member age 45:
Males
Females

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Years Years
22.6 22.6
243 245
236 239
25.6 26.0

The sensitivitics rcgarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

Assumption Change in assumption
Discount rate Increase / decrease by 0.50%
Rate of inflation (CPI) Increase / decrease by 0.50%
Rate of mortality Increase by 1 year

Impact on scheme liabilities
Decrease 7.0% / increase by 8.0%
Increase 6.0% / decrease by 6.0%
Increase by 3.13%
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22) Retirement:benefit obligations (continued)

Defified benefit schemes: (continued)

CSC Computer Sciences'Ltd 2005 Pension Scheme:(continued)

‘The assets and liabilities of the pension scheme; along with the expected rates.of return on schenie assets are shown below:

Expected rate of return.
at 31.March 2021

‘Equities.

‘Bonds

‘Liability driven instrument
‘Cash:and other assets

Total market value of assets
Actugrial: value ofliabilities

:Surplus in the scheme,

Movénieiits in.tHe:dctuarial value:of scheme assets are;

Opening value

Expected return on scheme:assets;

Actuaiial gain

Contributions from'sponsoring companies
‘Contributions from:scheme members:
Administration cost incured

‘Benefits paid

Business combinations/ divestitires/ transfers

Movements:in the actuarial valug-of scheme liabilities:are:

Opening liability

Current service cost

Interest cost

Contributions from sclieme members
.Actuarial (losses)/gains

Benefits paid

Administration cost

Amendments

Termination benefits

Business combinations/ divestitures/ transfers.

Y%

6:95
5.18

Valueat.

31 March 2021

£000

1,150,913
706,132
:]f;56,7 12

13,566

2,027,323
(1,787,363)

239,960

Expected rate of return’
at’31 March 2020

Yo

5.5
0.60.

Value at.

31'March 2020

£000:

56,864

1,029

124,932
(102,862)

22,070
31 .March: 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £'000.
124,932 116,429
13,334 2,780
118,879 4,838
35 76
_(_2(_)8) (35)
(18,910): (2:403)
1,785,708 -
2,027,323

124,932

Year ended

31 March 2021

£'000

(102;862)
(499)
(11;298)
35)
(162,828)
13,910
208

2

(7,625)
(1,521,332)

(1,787,363)

Year ended

31 March:2020

£'000

(104,938)
- (2,293)
(2,476)
(76)
4,483,
2,403

35

(102,862)
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22). Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Defined benefit scheies:(continvied)

CSC Computer Sciences Lid 2005 Pension Scheme (continucd)
Amounts included‘within-operating loss are:

Current service cost
Total costs-included within operating loss.

Asmounts credited / (¢harged) to other finance income are:

~ Year gnded
31 March 2021
£°000

(499)
(499)
Year énded

31 March 2021
£2000.

__ Year ended
31March 2020
£7000:

1(2,293)

(2,293)

31 March 2020
£2000;

Expected teturn on penision schieme assets.
Interest.charged on pension scheme liabilities

Net return

The amounts recognised in the statement of .comprehensive income are:

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets ,
Changes in-assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities

‘Total actuarial loss récogniséd in the statement.of comprehiensivé income

The movement:in the pension surplus-during the year was:

Opening surplus

Currentiservice cost

Contributions:

Business combinations/ divestitures/ transfers.
Other finance income:

Actuarial (losses)/gain

Recogrition-of past:service ¢ost

Termination Benefits

Closing surplus

13,334
(11,298)

2,036.

Year ended
31 March
2021

£°000

118,879
(162,828)

2,780
(2:476)

304

‘Year-ended
31 March
2020

£7000°

(4,838)
(4,483),

(43,949)

9,321y

Year ended
'31. March
2021

£2000

22,070

(499)
3,553
264,376
2,036
(43,949)
)
(7,625)

Year.ended
31 Marchk
2020.

£2000

11,491
(2,293)
3,247
304,
9,321,

239,960

22,070
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22) ‘Retifement:biénefit:obligations (continued):

‘Diefined benefit schemes.(continued)

is and losses:

Difference:between the expected;and

actual return on scheme assets (£2000):

As a.%:of the schieine assets

Experience: (losses) /'gains on:scheme;
liabilities
A§ a Yof the

sine liabilities

Total:actuarial gairi-/ (loss) recogiiised in

the:statement ofitofal comprehensive
income+(£°000).
As.a %-of the scheme liabilities

Litd 2005 Pension: Scheme (continued)

Year ended Perlod ended

(1.18,879)

(34,331)
2%

43,949
2%

pinpiifer S¢iences Litd SMS Pensnon :Schenie;

. (4,838)
4%

(1,117
1%

9,321
9%

Period ended Perlod ended Period ended

=3% 12%

(639 747 (R
1% 1% -1%
8,060 {6,057)

8% 6%.

LApril
2017

BI88)  (12,694)

An dctuarial valuation of the CSC-Computer Sciences Ltd: SMS ‘perision scheme was iipdated to 31, March, 2021, The prinicipal

assumptions underlying:the actuarial:assessments:of the:present value of'plan liabilities as at 3

At:31 March 2021

Expected rate of increase in‘salaries
Expected rate of pensign ificreases
‘Discount rate:

Inflation assumptions

No:deficit paymerits;have been made:during the.financial year.

'Mortallty assumptions;
In

-’I'hc assumed hfe expeetéilons ‘on: retlrementfat age 65:are; '

Memberage:65:
Males

Females
Meinber age45:

‘Males:
‘Females

%

31 March 2021
‘Years

March:2021. are: shown below:

At 31 March 2020
%.

N/A.
N/A
173

§ have been _camed out- wnthm the: pastlhree years: ;Emto the;: mortality. experience, of the. ‘Company's defined. benefit
i¢ient-allowance for future changes ifi fortality rates.

'31. March 2020
Yeéars

226
© 245

239
26.0
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For the financial year 1 April 2020.t6 31 March 2021

22) Retirement benefitobligations (continued)

Defined benefit schemes.(continued)

CSC.Computer:Sciences/Ltd:SMS Pension Scheme; (continued)
The assets and liabilities of thie pensio schemie, along with the expected rates of refiirn on schéme assets are:shown below:

‘Expected rateof return

Value at

at 31 March 2021 31 March 2021

% . £000

Expected rate of return:at

Value at

31 March 2020 31 March 2020

%

£'000:

5.80 33,041

Equities - -

Bonds, 5 130 17,977

Liability dfiven instrument -

Cash and other assets 4,068
© Total market value of assets - 55,086

Actuarial-value of liabilities (50,451)

—Surplus/(Deficit)in the schieme

Movements in;thc actuarial valuc:of schcme asscts arc:-

Opcning; value )

‘Expected rétirn on scheme assets:

Actuarial gaiti

Contributions from sponsoring companies
Administration cost incurred

Benefits paid

Business coinbinations/ divestitures/ transfers

‘Movenments in the-actaarial valie. 6f schieine liabilities:are:

Opening liability

Intérest cost.

Current service cost:

Actuarial gain

Benefits paid

Administration-expenses

Amendments ‘

Business combinations/-divestiturés/ transfers

31 March 2021
£'000

55,086
993
1,664
720
(85).
{1,556
56,822).

31 March 2021

£:000:

(50,451)
897)
(85):

1,556

85
(51)
49,843

31 March 2020
£,000.

51,067
1,175
3,396
1,575
(i2)

(2,015)

55,086

31 March 2020:
£'000

(52,965}
(1,218)
(115)
1,720
2,015
112

(50,451)
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22) Retirement benéfit-obligations (continued)
‘Défined benefit schemes. (continued)

CSC Computer-Sciences Ltd SMS Pension Scheme:(continued)
Amounts included within operating loss are:

Curreit service:cost
Past service cost

Total costs included within operating loss.

Amounts:credited /{(charged). to other finance income are:

vExpected{Ar‘.etum on pension:scheme assets
Intérest charged on pension scheme liabilities:

Net return.

The amiourits recognised in the stateiient of'comprehensive income are:

Actuarial loss on plan assets ‘
Changes in assumptiofis-underlying the present value of thie: scherrie liabilities

Total actuarial.loss recognised in- the:statement.of comprehensive income

The.moverment in the:pension deficit during the year was:

Opening deficit

Contributions

Current service cost

Other finance cost

Actuarial gain

Recognition of past service cost

Closing surplus

Year ended

31 Mareh 2021
5’000

85)

D

136)

Year-ended.

31 March 2021
£2000

993
897y

96:

Year ended
31 March 2021
£°000

1(1,664)

Year ended
31'March 2021
_£°000

4,635
720.
(85)

96

1,664

51
(6,979).

_ Year-ended,
31 March 2020
£2000

(15)

1s)

Year ended
31 March ;020
£,000

1,175
(1,218)

@)

Year ended
31 March 2020
£7000

(3,396).
(1:720y

‘Year-ended.
31 March 2020
£'000:

(1,898).
1,575
Q1s)

(43)
5,116

4,635



CSC Computer Sciences Limited

‘Notes to the financial statements (continued) B
For the financial year 1 April 2020 to.31 March 2021

22) Retirement benefit-obligations (continued). '.
Defined benefit schemies:(continued)

CSC Computer Sciences Ltd SMS Pension Scheme:(continued)
History of experience: gains-and losses: .
Year ended Year ended Yearended Year:cnded
31 March 31 March 31 March ‘31 Marich.
2021 2020 2019. 2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000.

Ditference’ between'ihe,.expected and-actual return on:scheme:assets- (1,664) (3,396) (1,432); (2,344). '
As a:% of the.scheme assefs: = 0% 3% =5%

Expérience (losses)/ gains on schieine liabilities (£/000) - (1,758) 235 - 428
As a.% of the scheme liabilities - -3% 0%. 1%

Total actuarial gain recogniséd.in'the
statement of total recognised ‘gains arid losses:(£000) 1664 SM6 0202 3,714

fhe scheme liabilities__________ T T T N%. 0% 1%

Note 31 March 2021 31 March:2020
£7000 £000

Current service cost 846. 3,382
Tetminatibh.beﬁeﬁ_ts ) 7,884 4,049
Operatiig cost for defined contribution scheime 21,178 13,536

Total pension costs included within-operating profit ‘8 29,908 20;967

‘Oth¢r finarice income associdted with defined benefit.schémes 9 (44,836) (42,551)
Other finance charges-associated with:defined benefit schemes 9 38,903 39,861

Total pension:cost 28,076 18,277
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22) Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Defined benefit schemes (continued)

Reconciliation of combined pension liability disclosed on the balance sheet at 31 March 2021

Opening asset / (liability) at 1 April 2019

Current service cost

Contributions

Termination benefit

Other financial income

- Expected return on pension scheme assets

- interest charged on pension scheme liabilities

Actuarial loss

- Actual return less expected retirn on pension scheme assets
-Changes in assumptioris underlying the present value of the
scheme liabilities

Asset at 31 March 2020

Current service cost

Contributions

Termination benefit

Other financial income

- Expected return on pension scheme:assets

- interest charged on pension scheme liabilities

Actuarial loss ‘

- Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets

- Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
scheme liabilities

- Business combinations/ divestitures/ transfers

- Recognition of past service cost

Asset at 31 March 2021
23) Lease liabilities

Current
Non-current

CSC

Computer
Sciences Ltd

Csc €SC
Computer Computer
Sciences Ltd  Sciences Ltd

Pension 2005 Pension SMS Pension
Scheme Scheme ‘Scheme
£'000 £'000 £'000
105,941 11,491 (1,898)
(974) (2,293) (115)
9,281 3,247 1,575
(4,049) - -
38,596 2,780 1,175
(36,167) (2,476) (1,218)
12,064 4,838 3,396
77,201 4,483 1,720
201,893 22,070 4,635
(262) " (499) (85)

- 3,553 720

(259) (7,625) -
30,509 13,334 993
(26,708) (11,298) (897)
52,343 118,879 1,664

- (162,828) -
(257,397) 264,376 (6,979)
(119) @ €2))

239,960 -

Total

£'000
115,534
(3,382)
14,103
(4,049)

42,551
(39,861)

20,298
83,404

228,598
(846)
4,273

(7,884)

44,836
(38,903)

172,886
(162,828)

(! 723

239,960

At 31 March At31 March

2021 2020
£7000 £7000
15,751 14,396
68,751 76,761
84,502 91,157

57



CSC Computer Sciences Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year 1. April 2020 to .31 March 2021
23). Leaseliabilities (continued)

Matiirity analysis - Undiscounted léase payments

1 year
2 year
3. year
4 yedr
5.year.
>5.years:

Total lease:liability

Amount recognised in the:statement of profit and loss:

— e e i e e . 4 el A e e s e o7 S

2021
£'000.

10,452
7;866.
6.162
4,543

69,358

2020
£000

14,982
10;599
8,528
5,669
4,543
73,138

111;284.

2021

117,459 -

2020

R S | A

Interest.on lease liabilities
Income from:sub-leasing right-of-use assets:

‘The:Company is using (he leased assets for operational purpose.
‘There are:no restrictions or covenants imposed by leases.

24) ‘Share capital

Allotted, issued and fgl_l_y paid:
195,600.(2020; 195,600) ordinary sharés of par value of-£100.each

“The; Comnpanyhas-one class. of ordindry shares which carries no right to fixed income:

‘No shares reserved for issue:under options and:contracts for the sale: of shares.
25) ‘Capital-and other commitments

At 31 March 2021; the Company.had the:following capital commitments:

Contracted forbut not provided

2,523
2,058,

At-31 March
2021
£°000

19,560

2,460.
1,904

At 31 March
2020
£2000

At 31 March:
2021

£1000

4,071

19;560.

At 31 March
2020
£2000

5,078

‘The capital commitments relate to both computer hardware and software:commitments and are due within'the hext 3 years.
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26) Controllmg partles

group- ﬁnancial statem‘ehtslaue prepared Copies:of' the group ﬁnanclalvétatements of DXC
the registered address: 20412, Bashan Drive, Suite: 250, Ashburn, VA 20147, USA.

The: immediate parent:Company 6f €SC ‘Comiputer Sciences -Limited is DXC UK Holdings Linited. (forierly. ‘CSC: Cormputer
Sciences ‘UK Holdings Limited), a ‘Company. incorporated in United- Kingdom and: registered in England and Wales with.'its
registered office situated at Royal Pavilion, Wellesley: Road, Aldershot, Hampshire;;GU11 .1PZ.

27) Discontinued:opérations
OnJuly 17, 2020, DXC entered into:a purchase agreement:to sell its healthcare software businéss to: Dedalus; Holdmg S.p.A.. The.
sale'was transacted;on’March 31,2021, The results of Healthcare division:for-the yeararejpresented below.

At:31 March: At31 March

2021 2020
£°000, £°000 -
Revenue from contracis with customers . 80,068 90,462
Gain:on:disposal of ealtheare busiriess ‘ ‘ 123365 -
‘Expenses: (55,181) (53;032)
Profitbefore tax:from discontinued operations- , 148,252, 37,430 |
Tax:benefit - -
Profit for, the year. f’ro‘m;discont’inued-ope_rations 148,252 37,430
The breakup for-assets held for. sale, presented:in thie balance sheet is dsbelow
Assets Held for sale At 31 March,
2021
£000:
Tumbridge: & Huthwaite: 7,532

:28). Events; after the end of* the reportmg year
s OnMay 19,2
contemplafed: to. take:-place in Jute: 2021 as part ‘ofa w1der Ilqmdlty‘restmctunng :
£400,000,000 standing to the credit of the share:premium account:of the Company be: cancelled and that the amount S0
cancelled be-credited to distributable reserves.

o On June 2, 2021, the Company made a dividend distribution of :£168,510,825 and£1,239;175 to. DXC ‘UK Holdings
Limited’ and |SOFT Group (UK) 1 Limited: ‘respectively.

¢ On September 16, 2021, the:Company issues:share to DXCiUK: Holdings Limited for:a: consideration.of:£211,780,333:77
and to iSoft Group UK Limited for-a.consideration of £1,561,891.23:

o On:February.25, 2022,.100 shares:@ £0.01 of TESM .were:transferred from Fruition Partners UK Limited:to the Company:.

o -On. February 03,2022, Investment in 360 Global Net:Limited:sold.to: CBPE:Capital Fund X LP.

¢ In May 2021,:the: Company‘sold its investment i Fixnetix Limited.

o The.Cofpany: purchased 'shares. in Applabs Technologles (UK) PVT Limited for

o O Septem‘ 2,
Technology mpany, the: pn ctpal amotint 6

o DXC Luxembourg Holdirig:S.a::] tepaid the loan.6f £169,750,000 dnd:the §aivie-has beei to lentto DXC UK Hiterhational
Operations.Limited.

o OmApril27, 2022, the:Company completed the:sale:of Tiinbridge Wells data centie.
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28) Events after the end of the reporting year (continued)
e  Thc impact of the war in Ukraine and rclated events are considered to be non-adjusting events, they do not affect amounts
recognised as of March 31. 2021. The directors consider that the war will not have any material impact in. financial year

2022 and beyond since the Compainy does not have any customers/suppliers in either Ukrain¢ or Russia.

There were no other material or significant events othér than above that occurred during the period from 31 March 2021 to the date
of approval that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

Annexure—1I

PO Box 24139, Doha, State of Qatar
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Proportion  Proportion
. Country of . . of ordinary  of ordinary
Name and Registered office incorporation Principal activity shares held  shares held
% in 2021 % in 2020
Direct investments
DXC UK (Middle East) Limited United Kingdom Computer Services 100.0 100.0
Royal Pavilion, Wellesley Road, Aldershot
Hampshirc, GU11 1PZ, United Kingdom
~ Computer Sciences Corporation Services (Pty) ~ South Africa Computer Services 100.0 100.0
Timited - - - o e e W SEEREE R R T A A —
P O Box 32, Wcst Tower; Canal Walk, Century City
Cape Towr, 7446
DXC Technology Deutschiand Consulting GmbH Germany Computer Services 100.0 94.7
Abraham Lincoln Park — 1, DE - 65189, Wiesbaden
iSOFT Health Verwaltungs-GmbH Germany Computer Services 100.0 100.0
Burgstr. 9, Bochum 44867, Germany
Royal Pavilion Unit Trust Jersey Unit Trust 100.0 100.0
22 Grenville Street, St Helier,
Jersey, JE4 8PX
Others
House Builder XL Limited United Kingdom Computer Services 15.0 15.0
Future Space - North Gate, Filton Road, Bristol,
England, BS34 8RB
Celeritifintech Services Limited United Kingdom Computer Services 5.4 5.4
New Kings Court Tollgate, Chandler's Ford,
Eastleigh, Hampshire, United Kingdom, SO53 3LG
Tribridge Italy S.r.l Italy Computer Services 100.0 -
Via Bernardino Telesio 25 Milano,
Milano, 20145, Italy
DXC Pension Trustee Limited United Kingdom 100.0 100.0
Royal Pavilion, Wellesley Road, Aldershot
Hampshire, GU11 1PZ, United Kingdom
Indirect investments
CSC Computer Sciences (Middle East) FZ LLC United Arab Computer Services 100.0 100.0
201, 2nd floor, Pfizer Building, Dubai Media city Emirates
PO Box 500020, Dubai
CSC Computer Sciences Middle East Ltd OPC Qatar Computer Services 100.0 100.0



